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INTRODUCTORY SECTION
(Unaudited)

The introductory section includes a transmittal letter from the County Manager and Chief
Financial Officer of the County, the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting, a list of principal officers, the System’s organization chart and a map of the County.
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February 24, 2023

Honorable Lee Hearn Chairman,
Members of the Board of Commissioners,
and the Citizens of Fayette County, Georgia

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the Fayette County Water System, an Enterprise Fund of Fayette
County, Georgia for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, is hereby submitted. As a means of providing additional financial
and operational information about the Water System (the “System”), the County has chosen to prepare this separate financial
report, which is published in addition to the County’s ACFR, which includes all the different funds it maintains. It is
management’s belief that the Water System’s customers, bond holders, rating agencies and water resource planning entities
are better served by a financial report which concentrates specifically on the financial position, operating activities and
compliance requirements of the utility itself.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with management. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the Water System
established a comprehensive internal control framework whereby the cost of a control does not exceed the benefits to be
derived, as the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance. These internal controls are designed both
to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft or misuse, and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the County’s financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). To the
best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds, account groups, and component units
of the Fayette County, Georgia Water System. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the
Fayette County Water System financial activities have been included.

The Water System’s financial statements have been audited by Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC, a firm of licensed Certified
Public Accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of
Fayette County, Georgia for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation.

The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified
(i.e., clean) opinion that the Fayette County Water System’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are
fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the
Financial Section and can be found on pages 17 through 19.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with
the MD&A section. Management’s Discussion and Analysis is located in the Financial Section of this report and can be found
immediately following the Report of the Independent Auditors on pages 21 through 27.



OVERVIEW OF THE ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) is presented in three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical.
The Introductory Section includes this letter of transmittal, a list of principal officials, and an organizational chart. The
Financial Section includes the Management’s Discussion and Analysis; Basic Financial Statements; Required Supplementary
Information, Schedules of Individual Accounts, as well as the Independent Auditor’s Report on these financial statements and
schedules. The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-
year basis.

REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes the accounts of all the Fayette County Water System’s operations. The Water System, established in
1965, is an Enterprise Fund of Fayette County and serves 32,816 customers in the unincorporated areas of the County and
through the County owned distribution systems in Peachtree City, Tyrone, Woolsey and Fayetteville. The Water System also
wholesales water to the City of Fayetteville pursuant to a wholesale water contract, which expires in 2034. And by agreement,
the County operates the system owned by the Town of Brooks. The Water System Director is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the System.

GOVERNMENT STRUCTURE

Fayette County, established in 1821, is a body corporate and politic organized and existing under the Constitution and the
laws of the State of Georgia. Encompassing approximately 199 square miles, it is one of the smaller counties in the State in
terms of area. Fayette County is geographically located in the northwestern part of Georgia about 15 miles south of Atlanta
city limits and is considered an integral part of the Atlanta Regional Metropolitan area.

The governing authority of Fayette County is a Board of Commissioners consisting of five elected members. The
commissioners serve on a part-time basis and are elected to staggered terms of four years. Fayette County holds district
voting in four districts with one district electing at-large. Four commissioners are elected by the citizens in their respective
district, while the fifth commissioner is elected at-large. At their first meeting each calendar year, the Commission Chairman
and Vice-Chairman are selected by the Board.

In their policy making capacity, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to levy taxes; direct and control all property of the
County; establish, alter, or abolish roads and bridges; examine, settle and allow claims against the County; examine and audit
the accounts of all officers having the care, management, keeping, collection, or disbursement of money belonging to the
County; establish the cost of licenses; and make such rules and regulations as necessary for the protection and preservation
of health, safety, welfare, and morals. The Board of Commissioners appoints the County Administrator who serves as the
County’s chief administrative officer. The County Administrator is responsible for the daily operations of all County functions,
in accordance with the policies of the Board of Commissioners.

A Water Committee, composed of seven members, meet monthly, to consider matters relevant to the System’s operations.
Membership includes: three citizens appointed by the Board of Commissioners, the County Administrator, the Environmental
Management Director, Fire Chief, and the Water System Director. The Water System’s consulting engineer and county
attorney are non-voting members. This Committee recommends projects and actions to the Board of Commissioners. The
Water Committee is not authorized to implement policy or authorize expenditures.

WATER SYSTEM FACILITIES
When analyzing Fayette County Water System operations, it is helpful to think of the potable water business in terms of its

various processes or stages in the delivery of this natural resource as safe drinking water. Basically, System operations can
be thought of as three operational components: raw water supply; water treatment and distribution.



In terms of supply, the Water System obtains all its raw water from surface water sources. During the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022, the System has five primary sources of raw water, all located in the County. Two reservoirs, Lake Kedron and Lake
Peachtree, are located on Flat Creek. Another reservoir, Lake Mclintosh, is located on Line Creek. In addition, the System is
permitted to pump from the Flint River to Lake Horton. The following chart summarizes surface water sources, reservoir
storage capacities and permitted withdrawal rates.

Water Sources

Withdrawal
Permit

Source Location Local Jurisdiction | Lake Acreage (MGD) Storage (Gallons) | Water Treatment Plant
Flat Creek Lake Peachtree Peachtree City 250 a5t 0.5 Billion Crosstown
Flat Creek Lake Kedron Peachtree City 235 1.9 Billion Flows to Lake Peachtree
Woolsey and Horton Creeks |Lake Horton Unincorporated 780 14.0** 3.4 Billion South Fayette/Crosstown
Line Creek Lake Mclntosh Peachtree City 650 10.4 2.3 Billion Crosstown
City of Atlanta Finished Water - 4.0%** -

Total 1,915 32.9 8.1 Billion

* Withdrawal is permitted if mean water level is maintained.
** 16.0 MGD withdrawal is permitted to be pumped from Flint River to Lake Horton when flow exceeds 30 cubic feet
per second.
=+ |se is based on emergency needs.

In providing production flexibility, the raw water stored in Lake Horton can be pumped to either the Crosstown or the South
Fayette Water Treatment Plants, as needed. In addition to these raw water sources, the County has an agreement with the
City of Atlanta to purchase finished water if needed. The Water System can purchase up to 4 million gallons per day. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, an average of 916 gallons per day was purchased from the City of Atlanta.

In looking at production capacity for finished water, as shown in the chart below, the Water System has two facilities available

to treat raw water. The Water System pumps the treated water from its two treatment plants to its storage facilities, from
which the treated water is then either re-pumped or gravity fed throughout the System’s water distribution network.

Production Capacity

Average Capacity Onsite
Total Permitted - Production - (Million
Water Treatment Facility MGD* MGD Gallons)
Crosstown 13.5 0.1 6.0
South Fayette 9.3 3.6 3.0
Total 22.8 9.7 9.0

* Million Gallons per Day

During FY2022 the treatment capacity at Crosstown Plant was 2.21 times the average production and 1.07 times the
maximum production level that occurred in a 24-hour period. A diesel generator is available to provide emergency power to
the facility if needed. Construction of the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant was completed in 1986 and improvements were
made in 1997 and 2015.

The South Fayette Plant includes raw water storage for approximately three days of production at maximum treatment
permitted flows. This plant has a diesel generator available to provide emergency power to the facility if needed. The South
Fayette Water Plant was placed into service in July 2001.



In terms of potable water storage in the distribution system, there are four elevated storage tanks that have a total storage
capacity of 7 million gallons (see chart below). That storage capacity is slightly less than one day's average usage. These tanks
were constructed from 1965-2004 and when added to the onsite storage at each plant give more than one day’s demand of
storage. These tanks are regularly maintained for structural integrity and water quality purposes. A complete hydraulic water
system model is being developed in the 2023 fiscal year to identify operational improvements and to help with the installation
of future storage tanks within the distribution system.

Offsite Storage Tanks

Location Capacity (Gallons)
Peachtree City Tank 2 1,000,000
Crabapple Tank 2,000,000
Ellis Road 2,000,000
Highway 92 North 2,000,000

Total 7,000,000

The distribution system includes 660 miles of water lines of various diameters and materials. To put that number in
perspective, that is enough piping to almost reach from Fayetteville, Georgia to Fort Lauderdale, Florida. With the home
construction increasing, infrastructure additions for the 2022 fiscal year totaled $3,598,886. The following tabulation shows
water line footage by size, including additions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. For the following table’s purpose, any
existing piping that is smaller than 6 in. does not carry significant water flows thus they are not reported as part of the
distribution system.

The water lines are installed by a contractor selected by low bid and the projects are designed by the Consulting Engineer.
The water lines for subdivisions are installed by the developers’ contractor with the Water System’s inspector handling the
inspections. These water lines are contributed to the Water System upon approval of the construction by the Water System
Director. The Water System installs some water lines to complete loops or to add additional customers to a continuation of
an existing waterline.

INVENTORY OF PIPING DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (in feet)

Beginning FY2022 Activity Ending

Size Balance Additions Retirements Balance
6" DIP 795,900 - - 795,900
8" DIP 1,539,258 29,532 - 1,568,790
8" C900 PVC 225 - - 225
10" DIP 294,861 - 294,861
12" DIP 287,575 - 287,575
16" DIP 156,506 2,971 - 159,477
18" DIP 8,390 - - 8,390
20" DIP 225,568 - - 225,568
24" DIP 106,950 - - 106,950
30" DIP 37,802 - - 37,802
Totals 3,453,035 32,503 - 3,485,538

Beginning Miles Ending Miles

653.98 660.14

*Includes developer and non-developer waterlines




ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Environmental Scan: The local economic conditions and operating environment for Fayette County, Georgia are often times
directly or indirectly impacted by not only what is occurring in the United States but also globally. Thus, performing a scan of
economic environments, both nationally and internationally, can be helpful in establishing the proper perspective for
economic analysis on the local level. Following the COVID-19 pandemic, some of the more important economic metrics
regarding financial activity in calendar year 2022 are highlighted in the following bullet points:

e  Real gross domestic product (GDP) decreased (0.6) percent in the second quarter;

e Disposable personal income increased 0.6 percent in the second quarter;

e Residential housing starts increased by 15.6 percent during 2021;

e U.S. International Trade Balance deficit increased by 9.5 billion, or 13.3 percent, between June 2021 and June

2022.

Local Economy: Fayette County is strategically located just south of Atlanta in close proximity to three interstate highways,
I-75, 1-85 and 1-285. It is just a short commute to the City of Atlanta, which is considered the Business Capital of the New
South. And Hartsfield-Jackson International Airport, the world’s busiest, and one of the more significant economic engines
for the south side of Atlanta, is located just north of the County.

Fayette County continues to benefit economically by being an integral part of one of the historically top growth areas in the
United States. The Metropolitan Atlanta region represents one of the nation's primary transportation and distribution
centers as well as being a major financial and consumer services leader. Georgia’s geographically central location for domestic
distribution, excellent surface transportation system, telecommunications infrastructure and proximity to major consumer
markets make the State an excellent base for air cargo operations.

Again, in performing a more localized environmental scan, Fayette County has an outstanding labor force, abundant higher
education opportunities, a favorable business climate, a wide range of leisure opportunities and high-quality housing. Each
of these factors continues to make Fayette County an attractive place to live, work and play.

Fayette County is home to a highly skilled labor force. The majority of workers in the county are either high school graduates
or have obtained their GED or have at least some college training. Figures published by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics
indicate that there were 58,542 Fayette County residents that were employed as of June 30, 2022. Many residents commuted
outside the County for employment. The two most frequent destinations for Fayette County’s work force are Fulton and
Clayton Counties. This is no real surprise given that the airport is located mainly in Clayton County and the Central Business
District (i.e., Downtown Atlanta) is located in Fulton County.

Statistics from the Georgia Department of Labor indicate that in 2022 there were 4,446 industries located in Fayette County
that produced 46,160 jobs. Of that total, 547 industries were labeled as “Goods-Producing” and accounted for 8,358 jobs, or
18.1 percent of the total. By far, the largest component was the “Service-Providing” industries. That segment totaled 3,399
firms and represented 32,446 jobs or 70.3 percent of the total. Based on those numbers, it can also be said that Fayette
County has a fairly broad industry mix and its economic well-being is not dependent on the success of any one employer or
industry.

Atlanta and the Metro region enjoy relative economic stability as we emerge from the COVID-19 crisis. The Atlanta business
community has benefited from several strengths of the region which include having a diverse economic base; experiencing
strong in-migration and population growth; serving as a transportation, distribution and cultural center; and offering a
business-friendly environment. These factors have contributed to economic recovery in the region. The COVID-19 crisis has
undoubtedly impacted not only the local economy but the global economy as a whole. However, one of the obvious effects
of the pandemic, unemployment, has declined significantly over the past year from 4.5 percent in June of 2021 to 3.2 percent
in June of 2022.

The near-term economic forecast remains strong. As businesses slowly return to normal operations, we are beginning to see
a rise in the economy. The rate of growth is expected to be slow and has been impacted by supply chain issues. Prices
continue to rise due to high inflation.



The economic outlook for Fayette County remains stable as a result of prudent planning to eliminate deficit budgeting. This
proactive approach has enabled the County to maintain a strong financial position. Property values are rising and there is
significant new construction in the county resulting in an increase in the 2022 tax digest of 17.5 percent. One of the benefits
of having a skilled work force is that the unemployment rate continues to be below the state average. For June 2022, the
rate for Fayette County was 2.8 percent, compared to the state and national average of 2.9 percent and 3.6 percent,
respectively.

The quality and quantity of services provided by the County to its residents are second to none. In Fayette County, one will
find one of the highest ranked school systems in Georgia, one of the lowest crime rates in the Metro-Atlanta area, and an
efficient County government with one of the lowest millage rates and service costs per capita in the State. Each of these
quality-of-life factors combines to make the County an extremely attractive place in which to reside.

Economic Forecast: Based on the economic information that is currently available, one can make certain projections about
the economic conditions that Fayette County will face during its next operating cycle. The more relevant highlights from the
economic forecast prepared by The Balance include the following projections:
e Nationwide, unemployment is expected to drop to an average rate of 3.5 percent in 2023, after it peaked at 14.8
percent in April 2020;
e Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate is expected to rise by 4% in 2022. It is estimated to then drop to a
2.2% growth rate in 2023 and slow further to 2.0% in 2024;
e Inflation will average 2.6 percent in 2023.

MAJOR INITIATIVES/ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Fayette County Water System (FCWS) continues to implement multi-year capital improvement projects and improve
operations and maintenance functions ensuring delivery of the highest-quality, environmentally compliant drinking water in
a cost-effective and efficient manner.

The Finance Department worked with the Water System to refinance and restructure the Revenue Bond Series’ 2009,
2012A/B, and 2016 outstanding debt of $27,055,000. The refinancing/restructuring of the outstanding debt generated a gross
savings of $1,101,755 and creates a debt-free Water System in six years.

As part of the Smart Water Initiative, ten IHYDRANTS (smart fire hydrants), designed to wirelessly monitor and alert staff to
system pressures and temperatures in real time, were installed. Real-time alerts allow both water and field distribution
operators to see hydraulic events as they occur and respond to them accordingly. This data can then be downloaded and
used for many applications such as pressure model calibration, Fire Department ISO pressure verification requirements, and
pressure zone analysis.

Regular installation of water laboratory sample collection devices began at a variety of new development locations
throughout the distribution system — to date 23 have been installed. These devices allow personnel to collect water quality
samples at the meter.

Construction of the hose-less sludge collector project began at both treatment plants. Sludge collectors take solids away as
raw water is processed through the sedimentation basins. The existing systems at both plants were at end-of-life and
maintenance parts were obsolete. This new collection system efficiently removes solids, reducing labor and energy costs
associated with pumping and dewatering.

Construction of Veterans Parkway water main loop that began this year was delayed due to cast iron pipe unavailability. In
FY23 the final tie-in will be accomplished with a 20-inch diameter, 360-foot horizontal directional drill boring under SR 54.
This loop will eliminate a dead-end line resulting in improved water quality and redundancy to this area. Staff also finalized
engineering design to eliminate conflicts with SR 54 at SR 74 Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) intersection
improvements. Construction of this $1.2 million relocation will begin in June 2023.



The Water System implemented an electronic plan review process that includes plan submittal, review, and inspection
tracking through a cloud-based plan review application software. This software establishes consistent submittal processes
across all County jurisdictions and streamlines review and acceptance procedures for both staff and developers.

System security includes both physical and cyber security for the Water System. Cameras were installed at the reservoir parks
this year and the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition upgrade project progressed with a full system review resulting in
a project priority plan.

The Interconnectivity Initiative, a five-part task to include analysis of water availability during droughts of record; distribution
infrastructure geographic information systems mapping, long-term water-supply planning and a rate study for sustainable
service delivery is almost complete. The Water Gems computer model to simulate hydraulic pressures within the distribution
infrastructure is currently being calibrated and is expected to be used by staff in FY23.

The System continues to concentrate efforts on major operation and maintenance projects.

e Field Operations completed over 3,100 customer service requests, 725 service orders, 28,000 water line locate
requests including 25 large projects locates that totaled nearly 350,000 linear feet. Staff also repaired more than 150
water main and service line leaks; installed 525 new water meters and reviewed 75 development plans. Pressure
relief valves at Cameron Trail and Wheatleigh Lane were replaced to aid in pressure stabilization in Peachtree City.

e South Fayette Treatment Plant lagoons were cleared of sludge. This was the first time the lagoons have been cleaned
since the plant began operations in 2000. Lagoon cleaning is a maintenance practice that allows adequate space for
storage of water to be recycled in the treatment process. Crosstown Water Treatment Plant’s four-million-gallon
storage tank repair and painting was completed.

e  Facility improvements included painting, floor replacement and kitchen remodeling at the McDonough Road
administrative building; painting and refurbishment of six buildings at the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant as
well as roof replacement of that plants’ finished water building.

e High service pumps, critical to pumping finished water out into the distribution system received both in-house and
third-party maintenance. No. 3 was repaired to a like-new condition and staff rebuilt the control valve and solenoids
for No. 2 to restore automatic functions and reliability of the pump and operating controls. The Flint River raw water
pump was also rebuilt to like-new condition.

e Repairs to flocculators at both Crosstown and South Fayette Water Treatment Plants optimized coagulation for
process improvement. Surge suppressors and optical isolators for each of the two chlorine analyzer systems installed
provided better electrical protection from lightning strikes and power surges.

The Water System continues to comply with Safe Drinking Water, Surface Water Withdrawal and Safe Dams Permit
requirements. Results of the 2022 Sanitary Survey, a three-year regulatory inspection conducted by Georgia Environmental
Protection Division (EPD), were the highest in almost 15 years. The high rating is a direct result of completed maintenance
projects and process improvements at each of the plants.

Georgia EPD recertified the Water System Laboratory to conduct microbiological sampling. This is a rigorous recertification
program involving demonstration of required best management practices through: biannual laboratory proficiency testing;
proficiency testing certification for all Class 1 and 2 Water Operators; stringent internal and external quality assurance and
control record keeping protocols; and laboratory ethics training for all laboratory and operations personnel.

The Water System laboratory purchased an updated Total Organic Carbon (TOC) Analyzer. This equipment allows the
treatment plants to monitor TOC in the reservoirs and filtered water ensuring effective TOC removal that decreases the
formation of disinfection byproducts in the distribution system.

Newly installed phone software now allows customer call tracking. On average, Customer Support staff handles an average
of 2,500 calls each month. This new software allows establishment of operational benchmarks regarding call quantity, times,
and efficiency.



Customer Support staff began a program during COVID to reach out to delinquent customers by letter and phone calls to
avoid disconnection of service. This effort provides customers flexible payment arrangements and is now part of FCWS
standard business practices.

Training, cross-training, and continuing education advanced during FY22. The Georgia Water and Wastewater Institute
provided an on-site microbiology class for re-certification points. In-house training on proper sampling technique was
conducted for Field Operations personnel. Treatment plant operations and laboratory staff implemented a robust cross-
training program for plant-to-plant cross-training intersecting with laboratory field sampling duties.

ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS

Management of the Water System is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to
ensure that the assets of the County are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data
are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe the Water System’s internal accounting
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance for the proper recording of financial transactions.

The Water System employs an Enterprise Fund concept to account for its operations which are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises — wherein the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis are financed or recovered
primarily through user charges. Cash flow budgets are prepared and adopted for the System.

The System maintains an encumbrance accounting system as another means of accomplishing budgetary control.
Encumbered amounts at year-end are recorded as a reservation of fund balance and carried forward into the ensuing year’s
budget.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the System continues to
meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

CASH MANAGEMENT

Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in accordance with allowable investments per Georgia law. The System
earned interest revenue of $26,678 on all investments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

The System’s investment policy is to minimize credit and market risks while maintaining a competitive yield on its portfolio.
Accordingly, deposits are required to be either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. At June 30, 2022, all
of the System’s depositories provided sufficient and/or proper collateralization of the System’s deposits.

REPORTING ACHIEVEMENTS AND RECENT AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Water System for its annual comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the System must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current annual comprehensive financial
report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to
determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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of the County.

Respectfully submitted,

e -

= sy

Steven A. Rapson Vanessa Tigert
County Administrator Water System Director

10



P

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
tor Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Fayette County Water System
Georgia

For 1ts Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2021

mﬁﬁw

Executive Director/CEQ

11



FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Elected County Officers
Board of Commissioners:

D71 4 Lox A AU USRS Eric K. Maxwell
[T A Tt A2 o =111 0 F= 1o DSOS Lee Hearn
11 g T 0 SO Edward Gibbons, Jr.
D1 o ot A SRS Charles D. Rousseau
District 5-At-Large, Vice-Chair .....c.coeoeciiiiiie ettt Charles W. Oddo
Clerk Of COUIS .. .uutiiiiee ettt ettt e et e e e e e e e ar e e e e e e e e baaeeeeeeeeensnsaeeeaeesenrnnees Sheila Studdard
Probate COUMt JUOEE.....cooiiiiiiiiecee ettt sttt s e be e s sne e Ann Jackson
Y 01T 01 PO TR ST OSSPSR Barry Babb
LI o] 1010 4111 (] 1= S N Kristie King
Superior Court Chief JUAZE.....uvi ettt ettt st e e et e e e W. Fletcher Sams

County AdmINISTrator.......uueeeii it e e Steven A. Rapson, CPA
(0o TUT o) YA AN 1 o] o 1= PPPPPUPPPPPPRE Dennis A. Davenport
Chief FINaNCial OffiCer ....ooiiie et et Sheryl L. Weinmann
County PUIChasing AZENT .....ceccuiii ettt e e e e rre e e s ta e e e e nre e e s naeeesnneeeans Ted Burgess
(070 10T o) 4V O[T USRI Tameca P. Smith
CommuNity DEVEIOPMENT ....iiieeiie ettt stee e e e e e e s eae e e e sare e e ennes Chanelle Blaine
911 COMMUNICATIONS CONTEN ..eiiiiiiiiiiieet ettt e et ee e s et e e e e s s s sabrar e e e e s e sasbaneeeesennes Katye Vogt
Emergency Management........ooeirineiennneneieere et s e Captain Michael Singleton
Fire & Emergency Medical SErviCes ........occeruiiiieiiiiiiieeeeneceee e Chief Jeffrey Hill
HUM@N RESOUICES..... ettt ettt e e e e e e e s e e e e e s nneeeeeeeeeas Lewis Patterson
Chief INformation OFfiCer .....uoiiii e Phillip Frieder
[T T | V2SS Michelle Copeland Bennett
Parks and RECIEAtION.....cc.uiiiiiiiiieieetee ettt st sae e s nee s Anita Godbee
PUBIIC WOTKS ..ttt sttt ettt e st e sbeesabeesaneenneas Phil Mallon
TAX A S SO ittt ettt st st ettt she et et s b st e b be e she et b ea e b saeeebbe e b ebbea et saeeenbeann Joel T. Benton
Water SYSTEIM .. snee s Vanessa Tigert

AUITOTS ..evieiiee ettt eee e e e e e erre e e e e e e eeanraeeeeeesennnnees Nichols, Cauley & Associates, LLC
Bond and Disclosure COUNSEl .......cccceovueerriiriiiieiieniieeeeeee e Murray Barnes Finister LLP
BONd UNAErWIILEIS .. .uviiiieiecciieeee ettt Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc.
CONSUILING ENGINEEIS ...viiiiiiiieeiiee ettt s e e s sabe e ssate e s saeaas Jacobs Engineering

12



FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

= ]

I

left to right: Edward Gibbons, Jr., Charles W. Oddo, Eric K. Maxwell, Lee Hearn., Charles D. Rousseau,

County Commission Mailing Address:
140 Stonewall Avenue West
Suite 100
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210

13



FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Director
Water Production & Field Operations Professional [o]
Operations Manager Director Engineer Manager
I I |
Plant Manager Plant Manager Plant Maintenance Lacboonr‘apll?g‘sgd Training & Safety Field Operations Field Operations Facilities & Projects Customer Support | |Revenue Accounting| | Finance Operations
South Fayette WTP Crosstown WTP Manager Specialist Coordinator Manager Specialist Specialist Manager Manager Manager
I | l I I T
Day ShiftA Day ShiftA . . . Customer Support i i Accounts Payable
] Plant Maintenance | | | Analyst Warehouse Damage Prevention I'I\wllfr_astlruclu e Ilclfr_astlructu e Customer Field O E b Senior Accounting "
Class | Operator Class | Operator Technicain | -aboratory Analys! M Foreman aintenance aintenance Foreman Technician Il Technician
Class | Operator Class Il Operator anager Foreman Foreman
I I
NightShiftA NightShiftA Lead Customer A
. . Account Services
- Plant Maintenance Administrative . . Field Operations Field Operations Field Operations Service
Class | Operator I Class | Operator Technician Il 1 Secretal Field Operations - . - . Analyst
Class Ill Operator Class Ill Operator ICI: y Technician Il Technician| Technician| Technician Il Representative
Daysnit8 DaySnit® Plant Maintenance Field Operations Field Operations Field Operations Customer Service || AccountServices
— - — 1 I 1
Class | Operator Class | Operator Technician Il Techr:)lcnan I Technician Il 1 Technicianll Representative Technician
Class Il Operator Class Il Operator
NightShift B Night Shift2 Account Services
gl ] L] Plant Maintenance | | Field Operations Field Operations || Field Operations Customer Service | | Technician
Class | Operator Class | Operator Technicain Ill Technician lll Technician IIl Technician IIl Representative
Class Ill Operator Class Ill Operator
Customer Service || CustomerAccount
L Field Operations Representative [ Technician
Technician Il
|| Customer Account
Technician

14




FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
MAP OF METROPOLITAN ATLANTA AREA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

15



FINANCIAL SECTION

The financial section includes the independent auditor’s report on the financial statement audit, the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which provides a narrative introduction, overview and
analysis of the financial statements, and the basic financial statements including notes, required
supplementary information and supplementary information.
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NICHOLS, CAULEY & ASSOCIATES, LLC
1300 Bellevue Avenue
Dublin, Georgia 31021
478-275-1163 FAX 478-275-1178
dublin@nicholscauley.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Fayette County Board of Commissioners
Fayette County, Georgia
Fayetteville, Georgia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the Fayette County Water System (the “System”), an enterprise fund of Fayette
County, Georgia (the “County”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the System’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position
of the System, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the County and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The County’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the System’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt
shortly thereafter.

Atlanta | Calhoun | Canton | Dalton | Dublin
Fayetteville | Kennesaw | Rome | Warner Robins
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
System’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the System’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the
audit.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the System and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the
financial position of the County, as of June 30, 2022, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis (on pages 21 through 27), The Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) (on page 55), the
Schedule of Contributions — Pension Plan (on page 56), the Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability (on
page 57) and the Schedule of Contributions — OPEB Plan (on page 58) be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements. The schedules of individual accounts are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedules of individual accounts are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules of individual
accounts is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information Included in the Report

Management is responsible for the other information included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express
an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed,
we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our
report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 24, 2023 on our
consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

{EMLM’ @WX v fmoa}ZZa), LLE

Dublin, Georgia
February 24, 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of
the basic financial statements prepared by the Finance Director.

20



FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

As management of Fayette County Water System (the “System”), we offer the readers of the System’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the System for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We
encourage the readers to consider the information provided here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 2-10 of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the System exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $94,940,614 (net position). The unrestricted net position, which
represents the amount to meet the System’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors, was $1,263,869.

e The Water System’s total net position increased by $4,770,447 primarily due to a decrease in interest expense of
$697K and an increase in capital contributions of $1.9M.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Water System’s Basic Financial Statements. The
Water System operates as a utility enterprise and presents its financial statements using the economic resources
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. In layman’s terms, this presentation means that financial
information is reported using accounting methods similar to those followed by private sector companies. The statements
offer both short-term and long-term financial information about the activities of the Fayette County Water System. And to
further aid the reader with their analysis and comprehension of the information presented, two years of financial data is
often included in the presentations presented in this Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) component of the ACFR.

The Basic Financial Statements provide information about the Water System’s business-type activity; that being the provision
of potable water to its customers. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Required Financial Statements for Business-Type Activities

In reporting on the operation of its enterprise fund, the Water System’s basic financial statements include a “Statement of
Net Position”; a “Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position”; and a “Statement of Cash Flows”. The basic
financial statements also include Notes to the Financial Statements that are considered essential to a full understanding of
the data that is presented on the face of the Financial Statements. The primary purpose of the Notes is to provide additional
discussion, enhanced disclosure and tabular presentation of data to further explain information in the Financial Statements,
and to provide more detailed data. The Notes to the Financial Statements can be found on pages 35 through 53 of this report.

The information contained on the “Statement of Net Position” represents all of the Water System’s Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources and Liabilities and Deferred inflows of Resources and provides information about the nature and
amounts of investments in resources (assets) and obligation to the System’s creditors (liabilities). And in terms of operating
results, a “classified” presentation of the financial data is used to show the relative liquidity of the different classes of assets
and liabilities. Thus, this statement provides the basis for computing rate of returns, evaluating the capital structure of the
System, and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Water System.

On this first financial statement, the difference between total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources is reported as Net Position. To help provide the reader with basic information about the
overall liquidity of the Water System, Net Position is reported in three categories: 1) Net Investment in Capital Assets; 2)
Restricted; and 3) Unrestricted.

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the “Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position”. This statement measures the financial success of the Water System’s operations over the past year and can be
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

used to determine whether the System has successfully recovered all of its costs through user fees and other charges. It
provides the user with basic financial information about the profitability and credit worthiness of the Water System.

The final required financial statement is the “Statement of Cash Flows”. The primary purpose of this statement is to provide
information about the System’s cash receipts and cash payments during the fiscal year. The statement reports cash receipts,
cash payments and net changes in cash resulting from operating; noncapital financing; capital and related financing; and
investing activities. Again, to put it into layman’s terms, the purpose of this statement is to tell the user where the Water
System’s cash came from, what the cash was used for, and by how much the cash balance changed over the course of the
fiscal year.

Other Information

In addition to the Basic Financial Statements and accompanying Notes, this report also presents certain Required
Supplementary Information concerning the County’s progress in funding its obligations to provide pension and other
postemployment benefits to its employees. Required Supplementary Information can be found on pages 55 through 58 of
this report.

The Water System also prepares other statements and schedules to provide additional information about its operations and

compliance with its bond ordinances. These can be found on pages 61 through 68 of this report. Additional information about
the Water System, which may be of interest to the reader, is found in the Statistical Section of this report.

(This page is continued on the subsequent page)
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Financial Analysis of the System

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case of
the County’s Water System, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $94,940,614 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

Condensed Statements of Net Position

Change from Prior Year

2022 2021 Amount Percent
Assets
Current assets
Unrestricted assets S 4,681,489 S 4,989,393 $ (307,904) -6.17%
Restricted assets 13,243,214 18,272,921 (5,029,707) -27.53%
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets (net) 99,241,762 100,358,608 (1,116,846) -1.11%
Total assets 117,166,465 123,620,922 (6,454,457) -5.22%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 402,284 1,578,561 (1,176,277) -74.52%
Liabilities
Current liabilities 6,677,271 9,085,250 (2,407,979) -26.50%
Noncurrent liabilities 15,695,970 25,429,182 (9,733,212) -38.28%
Total liabilities 22,373,241 34,514,432 (12,141,191) -35.18%
Deferred outflows of resources 254,894 514,884 (259,990) -50.49%
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 80,433,531 72,629,475 7,804,056 10.75%
Restricted 13,243,214 23,105,210 (9,861,996) -42.68%
Unrestricted 1,263,869 (5,564,518) 6,828,387 -122.71%
Total net position S 94,940,614 $ 90,170,167 S 4,770,447 5.29%

The tabular information provides a good indication of the capital-intensive nature of operating a water utility. The
$99,241,762 Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation, represents 84.7% of the Water System’s Total Assets at June
30, 2022. In addition, it is important to consider that the funds in the Construction Accounts and in the Renewal and Extension
Account are restricted for future capital asset purposes.

The decrease in the Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation, is due to a $4.7M increase in assets offset by a $5.85M
increase in depreciation. The $S4.7M increase in assets is attributed to the installation of several meters and donated
waterlines at a cost of $3.6M, and the costs incurred for CIP projects that are still ongoing of S1M.

Total deferred outflows decreased by $1,176,277, while deferred inflows decreased by $259,990. Outflows Related to
Pensions decreased by $500k, while Deferred Charges decreased by $674k. Decreased charges was largely due to the bond
defeasance, while the decrease in outflows related to pensions was primarily due to the changes in “net difference between
expected and actual experience” and “changes of assumptions”. Deferred inflows Related to Pensions decreased by $270k.
The main contributing factor was a decrease of $230k of “net difference between expected and actual experience”

Noncurrent liabilities decreased by $9.7M, or 38.3%, due to the defeasance of outstanding revenue bonds. These bonds which
had a total liability of $27M were refunded with currents bonds at a cost of almost $19M. Current liabilities decreased by
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

$2.4M mainly due to the payment of $2.1M for obligations owed to the General Fund for Water System expenses brought
forward from FY 2021.

The largest portion of the Water System’s Net Position (i.e., 84.7% of the total) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.,
land, buildings, machinery, equipment, plants, and infrastructure) less any related debt still outstanding that was used to
acquire those assets. In reviewing the other components of the System’s Net Position, Restricted Net Position was
$13,243,214, which translates into roughly 13.95% percent of the total. Restricted Net Position represent assets that are
restricted by revenue bond ordinances to future debt service (i.e., $790,146), and system renewal and extension and
construction purposes (i.e., $12,453,068). The Unrestricted Net Position increased $6,828,387 from ($5,564,518) to
$1,263,869, primarily due to the defeasance of the Water System revenue bonds and the release of the $5.5 million debt
reserve.

Analysis of Changes in Net Position

The following tabular information represents the condensed presentation of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, and 2021. For each of the categories, the amount and percentage of change from
the previous fiscal year is shown to aid in the analysis of the financial data. Some of the information for the prior fiscal year
has been restated so that it is comparable with the presentation of financial information for the current fiscal year. As
indicated by the information in the next table, the Net Position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, increased by
$4,770,447.

(This page is continued on the subsequent page)
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Change from Prior Year

2022 2021 Amount Percent

Operating revenues

Water sales S 14,610,495 $ 14,220,603 S 389,892 2.74%

Other service fees and penalties 1,975,486 1,828,593 146,893 8.03%
Total revenues and contributions 16,585,981 16,049,196 536,785 3.34%
Operating expenses

Depreciation expense 5,846,184 5,651,765 194,419 3.44%

Other operating expenses 9,394,469 9,413,939 (19,470) -0.21%
Total operating expenses 15,240,653 15,065,704 174,949 1.16%
Operating income 1,345,328 983,492 361,836 36.79%
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Interestincome 26,678 10,019 16,659 166.27%

Intergovernmental 4,306 34,500 (30,194) -87.52%

Gain (loss) on disposal of property (5,399) (25,415) 20,016 -78.76%

Interest expense (142,258) (838,937) 696,679 -83.04%

Other expense (3,866) (2,785) (1,081) 38.82%
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (120,539) (822,618) 702,079 -85.35%
Income before contributions and transfers 1,224,789 160,874 1,063,915 661.33%
Capital contributions 3,697,188 1,771,985 1,925,203 108.65%
Transfers out (151,530) - (151,530) 0.00%
Change in net position 4,770,447 1,932,859 2,837,588 146.81%
Net position - beginning 90,170,167 88,237,308 1,932,859 2.19%
Net position - ending S 94,940,614 S 90,170,167 S 4,770,447 5.29%

In comparing the operating results between the two fiscal years, the key elements are discussed in the bullet points below:

e Increase in Capital Contributions of $1,925,203, or 108.6%, due to the increased donation of waterline extensions
from contractors.

e Increase in water sales of $389,892, or 2.7%

e Decrease in interest expense of $696,679 due to the refunding of the revenue bonds.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. The Fayette County Water System’s investment in capital assets for its business-type activities as of June 30,
2022, amounts to $99,241,762 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings
and structures, improvements other than buildings, machinery and equipment and Construction in progress. The tabular
information presented below provides a breakdown of capital asset balances by general classification and activity type as of
June 30, 2022, and 2021.

Water System's Capital Assets (net of depreciation/amortization)

2022 2021
Land $ 20,607,035 $ 20,607,035
Construction in progress 3,625,287 2,741,642
Buildings and structures 22,432,403 24,502,367
Infrastructure 45,154,157 43,951,871
Improvements 2,752,167 3,415,111
Machinery and equipment 4,670,713 5,140,579

$ 99,241,762 $100,358,605

The total net decrease in the System’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $1,116,846 or 1.1%.
Approximately $4.7M of assets (net of retirements and disposals) were added to the Water System; however, this was
offset by net depreciation expense of $5.8M.

The major CIP events during the current fiscal year included the following:

. Several CIP projects were completed in FY2022 that totaled $148,537, and they included the renovation of the Water
Administration Office Parking Lot, the establishment of the Starr's Mill Artifact Exhibit and the purchase of an
updated Total Organic Carbon (TOC) Analyzer.

° During the fiscal year, additional assets of $3,598,900 were added for infrastructure, including waterlines and meter
installations were added.

Additional information on the System’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 of this report.

Long-term Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had bonded debt outstanding of $18,899,000. All of the
outstanding bonds are revenue bonds which are secured by specific revenue sources.

Water System's Outstanding Debt

2022 2021

Revenue bonds $ 18,899,000 S 27,055,000

The $18,899,900 of debt shown above represents Fayette County Water Revenue Bonds which have been issued primarily
for the purpose of constructing plants, storage tanks, raw water reservoirs and pipelines for the Water System, and the
refunding of previous bond issues. The outstanding bonds are secured by a pledge of and lien on revenues derived by the
County from the ownership and operation of the Water System.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The County’s total debt decreased by $8,156,000 (30.1%) during the current fiscal year. The following are the reasons for the
overall decrease:

During the current year, the County issued Water System revenue bonds to refinance previously outstanding revenue bonds
reported in business-type activities. The refinancing was done to take advantage of favorable interest rates. The result is
expected to be a decrease in future debt service payments of $1,101,755. As part of the refunding, the County applied
approximately $9.2 million of restricted funds towards the bonds.

In October 2015, Standard and Poor’s reaffirmed their “AA” rating for the Fayette County, Georgia Water Revenue Bonds.
Moody’s released their Annual Comment on Fayette County Water in June of this year. In the comment Moody’s states, “The
financial position of Fayette County Water is superlative overall and is strong relative to its Aa2 rating.”

Additional information on the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 of this report.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The national and local economies are still improving, but the rate of improvement has slowed. On the national level, the
stock market continues to be strong and employment rates are good. Locally, the real estate market is active with continued
development and sales. Some important indicators of current economic conditions are:

e Nationwide, unemployment is expected to drop to an average rate of 3.5 percent in 2023 after it peaked at 14.7
percent in April 2020; for June 2022, the unemployment rate for Fayette County was 2.8 percent, compared to the
state and national average of 2.9 percent and 3.6 percent, respectively.

e  Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate is expected to rise by 4 percent in 2022. It may gradually decline to a 2.2
percent growth rate in 2023.

e According to the Georgia Department of Revenue, the Net Maintenance and Operation (M&O) Tax Digest for Fayette
County increased by $449,293,490 or 6.73% from January 1, 2020, to January 1, 2021. The increase from January 1,
2021, to January 1, 2022, was $1,245,631,898, or 17.49%.

These economic factors were taken into consideration when preparing the County’s budget for the 2023 fiscal year.
Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The Water System’s operations are funded solely from the fees that it generates providing potable water services to its
customers. For the 2022 fiscal year budget, there were no rate adjustments approved for the Water System.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County’s finances for all those with an interest in the
government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Fayette County Finance Department, 140 Stonewall Avenue W, Suite 101,
Fayetteville, Georgia 30214.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements include the statement of net position, the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position and the statement of cash flows. In addition, the basic financial
statements include the notes to the financial statements
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,403,085
Receivables, net 1,706,319
Inventories 531,522
Prepaid items 40,563
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 790,146
Investments 12,453,068
Total current assets 17,924,703

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets

Land 20,607,035
Buildings 65,338,538
Infrastructure 103,778,502
Improvements 17,315,645
Machinery and equipment 14,348,404
Construction in progress 3,625,287

Less accumulated depreciation (125,771,649)

Total capital assets 99,241,762
Total assets 117,166,465

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Related to OPEB 4,568
Related to pensions 244,534
Deferred charges 153,182
Total deferred outflows of resources 402,284
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 2,216,983
Accrued expenses 143,293
Accrued interest payable 36,447
Unearned revenue 465,800
Bonds payable 3,726,000
Compensated absences 88,748

Total current liabilities 6,677,271

Noncurrent liabilities

Bonds payable 15,173,000
Compensated absences 145,204
Total OPEB liability 34,546

Net pension liability 343,220
Total noncurrent liabilities 15,695,970
Total liabilities 22,373,241

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Related to OPEB 14,079
Related to pensions 240,815
Total deferred inflows of resources 254,894
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 80,433,531
Restricted for
Debt service 790,146
Renewal and extension 12,453,068
Unrestricted 1,263,869
Total net position S 94,940,614

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Water sales
Meter and service fees
Penalties
Municipal accounts handling fees
Other fees
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Cost of sales and services
Administration
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income
Intergovernmental
Loss on disposal of property
Interest expense
Other expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net

Income before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers out

Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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S 14,610,495
350,125
174,833
272,946

1,056,567
121,015

16,585,981

6,112,966
3,281,503
5,846,184

15,240,653

1,345,328

26,678
4,306
(5,399)
(142,258)
(3,866)

(120,539)

1,224,789

3,697,188
(151,530)

4,770,447
90,170,167

S 94,940,614




FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to vendors and service providers
Payments to employees for salaries
Payments for employee taxes and benefits

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers to other funds
Operating grants

Net cash used by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Refunding of capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Net cash used by capital and related
financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of investments, net
Interest income on investments

Net cash used by investing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents end of year

Classified as on the Statement of Net Position
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents
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$ 16,471,963
(7,237,561)
(3,231,712)
(1,117,155)

4,885,535

(151,530)
4,306

(147,224)

(9,194,521)
(109,678)
(1,041,299)
3,750

(10,341,748)

(3,375,151)
26,678

(3,348,473)

(8,951,910)

12,145,141

S 3,193,231
S 2,403,085
790,146

S 3,193,231




FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Operating income S 1,345,328

Adjustments to reconcile net operating income
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Depreciation and amortization 5,846,184

Net change in receivables, net (246,945)

Net change in inventories 4,355

Net change in prepaid expenses 3,442

Net change in deferred outflows of resources 502,018

Net change in accounts payable 619,198

Net change in accrued expenses 23,296

Net change in due to other funds (2,159,157)

Net change in unearned revenue 153,900

Net change in compensated absences payable 35,470

Net change in total OPEB liability (17,408)

Net change in net pension liability (964,156)

Net change in deferred inflows of resources (259,990)

Total adjustments 3,540,207

Net cash provided by operating activities S 4,885,535
Schedule of non-cash capital and related financing activities:

Contributions of capital assets S 3,697,188
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Fayette County Water System (the “System”) have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial
reporting. The County’s most significant accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

Fayette County, Georgia (the “County”) was established in 1821 and is a body corporate and politic organized and existing
under the Constitution and laws of the State of Georgia. The County operates under a Board of Commissioners — County
Administrator form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: Public Safety, Public
Works, Culture, Recreation, Community Services and other General Government Services.

The governing authority of the County is a Board of Commissioners, consisting of five part-time members, who serve for four-
year staggered terms. The Board appoints the County Administrator, who serves as the County’s chief administrative officer.
The County Administrator is responsible for the daily operations of all County functions in accordance with the policies of the
Board of Commissioners.

The Fayette County Water System (the “Water System”) was established in 1965 and is an Enterprise Fund of the County. It
serves 32,816 water customers in the unincorporated County and through the County owned distribution system in the City
of Peachtree City and the Towns of Tyrone and Woolsey. By contractual agreement, the County operates the system owned
by the Town of Brooks. The Water System also wholesales water to the City of Fayetteville pursuant to an agreement which
expires in 2034. The Water System is governed by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, but the Water System’s
Director is responsible for the day-to-day operation.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The System is an enterprise fund of the County which has a number of different funds and fund-types. The County uses an
Enterprise Fund to record the financial operating activities of the Water System because it operates as a separate utility
enterprise. In governmental accounting, the Enterprise Fund is used to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private business or where the Board of Commissioners has decided that the determination or revenues
earned, costs incurred, and/or net income is necessary for management accountability.

As the means of delivering potable water services to its customers, the System utilizes raw water reservoirs, water production
plants and a pipeline distribution system. To provide the funds that are necessary to pay for the provision of this utility and
the related support services, the Water System charges its customers a monthly user fee based on the amount of water they
consume. Because the operations of the Water System closely mirror those of a typical, commercial company, its accounting
records reflect a similar approach for measuring its business activity.

Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements for the Water System are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Water System’s various bond resolutions or ordinances require the establishment of certain accounts which are referred
to as "funds". These required accounts are maintained as part of the accounting records and include the Sinking Fund (Debt
Service) and the Renewal and Extension Fund (R&E). These are not "funds" as the term is used in generally accepted
accounting principles, but are separate "accounts" used to delineate the accounting and reporting for bond-related money
and repayment security requirements. The balances and activity that occur in these various accounts represent specific
segments of the enterprise fund as reported in the Water System’s basic financial statements. Additional compliance
information about these accounts is presented in a separate set of schedules that follow the basic financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Water System’s cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the
Water System consider their demand deposits and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments with a maturity of less than one year when purchased, non-negotiable certificates of deposit, and other
nonparticipating investments are stated at cost or amortized cost. Investments with a maturity greater than one year when
purchased and all investments of the pension trust funds are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an investment in an orderly transaction at year end.

The local government investment pool (“Georgia Fund 1”) is managed by the Georgia Office of the State Treasurer, which
allows certain types of governmental entities within the state to pool their funds for investment purposes. The primary
objectives of Georgia Fund 1 are safety of capital, liquidity, yield and diversification with a primary emphasis on safety of
capital and liquidity. Georgia Fund 1 is managed to maintain a constant net asset value of $1.00.

Receivables

All trade receivables have been reduced to their estimated net realizable value, and are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectible accounts. Estimated uncollectible accounts are based upon historical experience rates.

“Intergovernmental receivables” represents funds to be received from other local governments, state grant-in-aid, state
contracts, or federal funds. No allowance is deemed necessary for these receivables.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories consist of meters, pipes and fittings for
use in construction of line extensions and to support the maintenance on work on the system. The cost of such inventories is
recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both

the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Capital Assets

Capital assets are tangible and intangible assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are
reported in the financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Water System as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.

As the Water System constructs or acquires capital assets each period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized
and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs, which are amounts spent in
relation to capital assets that do not increase the asset’s capacity or efficiency or increase its estimated useful life. Donated
capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Acquisition value is the price that would be paid to
acquire an asset with equivalent service potential on the date of the donation. Intangible assets follow the same capitalization
policies as tangible capital assets and are reported with tangible assets in the appropriate capital asset class.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other tangible and intangible property, plant, equipment and
infrastructure depreciated/amortized using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and structures 40 years
Infrastructure 15-40 years
Improvements 10 years
Machinery and equipment 5—-20years

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. Bond premiums
and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, which is not materially
different than the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Compensated Absences

System employees are granted vacation, compensatory, holiday and sick leave in varying amounts. It is the Water System’s
policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits up to a specified maximum
number of hours. Compensatory and holiday leave is accumulated based on departmental discretion of need. In the event of
termination of employment, an employee is paid for accrued annual, compensatory, and holiday leave days. In addition,
regular full-time employees hired before March 1, 1998, with three or more years of service who resign in good standing or
retire from service with the County may elect to be paid at the rate of $15 for each day of unused sick leave up to a maximum
of $900. For other employees, the balance is treated as credited service for the defined benefit pension plan. Vacation,
compensatory, holiday and termination sick leave pay are accrued when incurred.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Water System has three items that qualify for
reporting in this category. The deferred charge on refunding and deferred amounts related to pension and OPEB are reported
in the statement of net position. The deferred charge on refunding resulted from the difference between the carrying value
of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded
or refunding debt. The deferred amounts related to pension and OPEB relate differences between estimated and actual
investment earnings, changes in actuarial assumptions, and other pension and OPEB related changes.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Water System has two items that qualify for reporting in
this category. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become
available. These two items relate to the deferred amounts related to pension and OPEB.

Net Position

The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is called
net position. Net position is comprised of three components: net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

e Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation/amortization and
reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, orimprovement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this
component of net position.

e Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related
to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted when constraints are placed on asset use either by external parties
or by law through constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred
inflows of resources that does not meet the definition of the two preceding categories.

Sometimes the Water System will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant
proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted
net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the
order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Water System’s policy to consider restricted net position
to have been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.

Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the Water System Enterprise Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their payment
are classified as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.
The “revenue bond sinking fund” account is used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the
next twelve months. The “revenue bond renewal and extension” account is used to report resources set aside to meet
unexpected contingencies or to fund asset renewals and replacements.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,

the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resource and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB and OPEB expense information of the County’s Retiree Benefits Plan (the “OPEB Plan”) Plan have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the OPEB Plan. For this purpose, the OPEB plan recognizes benefit payments when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Pension Plan

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resource and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the County’s pension plan and additions
to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
plan. For this purpose, benefits payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

The Water System distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the Water System'’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for sales and services. The Water
System also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new
customers to the system. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.

Capital Contributions

The Water System has recorded capital contributions as capital contributions revenue. Capital contributions include amounts
received from Federal, State and other governments for aid in construction and development of the Water System. Also
included are amounts received from real estate sub-dividers for water line extensions built by subdividers and contributed to
the Water System, both of which are capitalized as part of the Water System’s capital assets. It also includes amounts received
for meter, connection and tap fees from sub-dividers and other customers. The actual cost of meter installations has been
capitalized as part of the water distribution system.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Basis of Accounting

The Water System is required by the County Board of Commissioners to adopt annual operating budgets for its operations
and establish billing rates accordingly. The budget is formally adopted through passage of a resolution by the Board of
Commissioners. The Water System’s Director has the responsibility of administering these programs in accordance with the
policies and the annual budget as adopted by the Board of Commissioners.

The Water System budget is prepared on the cash basis (which differs from the accrual basis that is used for financial

reporting) and functions as an administrative control over expenditures. Neither the budget resolution nor any bond
covenants require that the System report budgetary information in its financial statements.

39



FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Debt Service and Sinking Fund Requirements on Water Revenue Bonds

Sinking Fund Requirements - The bond resolutions require the creation and maintenance of a sinking fund that is to be used
to pay the principal and interest on the revenue bonds as they become due. The bond resolutions specifically require that
monies be deposited monthly into the sinking fund until such time that sufficient funds are on hand to pay the semi-annual
interest payments and the bonds as they mature. During fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, $895,467 was paid from the revenue
fund into the sinking fund (including the debt service reserve account) with required debt and interest payments made from
the sinking funds when due.

Renewal and Extension Fund - After the monthly operating and maintenance expenses have been paid and the required debt
service transfers have been made, all monies remaining in the revenue fund in excess of a working capital reserve (in an
amount not to exceed one month’s estimated operating and maintenance expenses) are to be transferred to the renewal
and extension fund. The bond resolutions restrict disbursements from this fund to the following:

a. Paying principal of and interest on any revenue bonds then outstanding and falling due at any time for the payment
of which money is not available in the Sinking Fund securing the payment of same and interest thereon;

b. In case of an emergency having a major effect upon the System, or water and sewerage system if combined, caused
by some extraordinary occurrence that makes it necessary to use the funds of the System for the alleviation or
removal of such effects and an insufficiency of money exists in the Revenue Fund to meet such emergency;

c. Making replacements, additions, extensions, and improvements to the system and acquiring equipment deemed to
be reasonable and in the best interest of the County and the bond owners;

d. Payment of the charges of the Depository of the renewal and extension fund for investment services; and

e. The transfer of moneys, if any required, pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the bond resolution.

Rates and Fee Requirements

In accordance with the bond resolutions, the System’s schedule of rates, fees, and charges for services shall be maintained
at such a level so as to produce net revenues (after payment of reasonable and necessary costs of operating and maintaining
the system) equal to at least 1.20 times the amount required to be paid in to the sinking fund in the current sinking fund year.
This ratio is computed annually. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the System was in compliance with this requirement.

NOTE 3 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Custodial Credit Risk for demand deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the
County will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. State statutes and our bond resolutions require all deposits and investments (other than federal or state
government instruments) be collateralized by depository insurance, obligations of the U.S. government, or bonds of public
authorities, counties or municipalities. The County does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2022, the
County had no uncollateralized deposits.

The carrying amount of the deposits as of June 30, 2022 was $3,193,231 and is reported in the financial statements as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents S 2,403,085
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 790,146
S 3,193,231
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENTS

State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government and agencies of corporations of the U.S.
Government; obligations of any state; obligations of any political subdivision of any state; certificates of deposit or time
deposits of any national state bank or savings and loans which have deposits insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) or Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC); prime bankers’ acceptances; repurchase
agreements; and the Local Government Investment Pool of the State of Georgia (“Georgia Fund 1”).

The local government investment pool, (“Georgia Fund 1”), created by 0.C.G.A. §36-83-8, is a stable asset value investment
pool, which follows Standard & Poor’s criteria for AAAf rated money market funds and is regulated by the Georgia Office of
the State Treasurer. The pool is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) as an investment
company. The pool’s primary objectives are safety of capital, investment income, liquidity and diversification while
maintaining principal (51 per share value). The asset value is calculated weekly to ensure stability. The pool distributes
earnings (net of management fees) on a monthly basis and determines participant’s shares sold and redeemed based on $1
per share. The pool also adjusts the value of its investments to fair value as of year-end and the County’s investment in the
Georgia Fund 1 is reported at fair value. The County considers amounts held in Georgia Fund 1 as investments for financial
statement presentation.

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. The County employs multiple investment duration and investment management strategies which seek to
minimize the County’s portfolio interest rate risk. As a means of limiting exposure to fair value losses arising from rising
interest rates, the County’s Policy limits the investment of operating funds to investments with a stated maturity of no more
than 5 years from the date of purchase.

The County maintains liquidity in overnight investment vehicles for short term expenditures and remaining assets are
invested in short term securities with maturity limitations and by security type for the entire portfolio. The investment

program is designed to diversify and minimize changes in market price as interest rates change.

As of June 30, 2022, the County had the following investments:

Investment Maturity

Investment Type Rating Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 years 6-10 years
Georgia Fund 1 AAAf S 12,453,068 S 12,453,068 S - S -
S 12,453,068 S 12,453,068 S - S -

Credit Risk. Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. State statutes authorize the County to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia or of other states; obligations
issued by the U.S. Government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S Government or a U.S. Government Agency;
obligations of any corporation of the U.S. Government; repurchase agreements backed by the U.S. Government or a U.S.
Government Agency; prime banker’s acceptances that are eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve bank and have a Letter
of Credit rating of A+ or better; the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP); obligations of Other Political Subdivisions of
the State of Georgia.

The County’s investment policy permits the investment of County funds in the Georgia Fund 1, United States Treasury
securities, United States Government Agency securities with the full faith and credit of the United States Government, Federal
Instrumentalities (Government Sponsored Enterprises), time deposits (certificates of deposit) and savings accounts of
financial institutions that are qualified public depositories, and money market funds.
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One measure of the perceived credit risk of an issuer is the credit rating. The County’s investment policy provides strict
guidelines and limits investments to highly rated securities with minimum ratings of AAA money market funds, AAA rated
agency notes, AAA rated Government Sponsored Enterprises, AAA Federal Deposit Insurance Corp backed notes and U.S.
Treasuries.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the County will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that
are in the possession of an outside party. The County has no specific investment policy in regards to custodial credit risk for
investments. However as part of the County’s investment program, a large percentage of the investment portfolio is held by
the State of Georgia (i.e., Georgia Fund 1). In addition, the County’s externally managed open market security investments
are held with a third party custodian in accordance with Georgia Code. The County’s investment holdings are designated as
assets of the County in separate accounts in the County’s name.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that may be caused by the County’s investment
in a single issuer. However with that said, the County does not consider having a large percentage of U.S. Government issued
or backed investments in the portfolio as increasing its investment risks because of the financial stability of the issuer. To
minimize this component of credit risk, the County’s investment policy also provides asset allocation limits for each security
type. The following guidelines represent maximum limits established for diversification by instrument by the Fayette County
Board of Commissioners:

U.S. Treasury Obligations 100%
U.S. Government Agency Securities 50%
Repurchase Agreements 25%
Prime Banker’s Acceptances 10%
Local Government Investment Pool 100%
Certificates of Deposit 50%
Obligations of Other Political Subdivisions of the State of Georgia 25%

Fair Value of Investments. The County measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy
as follows:

e Level 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets;
e Level 2: Observable inputs other than those in Level 1; and
e Level 3: Unobservable inputs.

Debt and equity securities classified as Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Debt and
equity securities classified in Level 2 are valued using the following approaches: debt securities are normally valued based on
price data obtained from observed transactions and market price quotations from broker dealers and/or pricing vendors;
equity securities are valued using fair value per share for each fund. Certificates of deposit classified in level 2 are valued
using broker quotes that utilize observable market inputs. Securities classified as Level 3 have limited trade information.
These securities are priced using the last trade price or estimated using recent trade prices. The Georgia Fund 1 is an
investment pool which does not meet the criteria of GASB Statement No. 79 and is thus valued at fair value in accordance
with GASB Statement No. 31. As a result, the County does not disclose its investment in the Georgia Fund 1 within the fair
value hierarchy.
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NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. The allowance for uncollectibles represents an estimate

based on historical collection rates and account balance aging reports.

At year-end, the Water System had $881,621 in billed customer receivables. In addition, a receivable of $949,698 was
recorded for services rendered at year-end but not yet billed at June 30, 2022. The receivable was computed using the cycle
billings sent to customers in July and prorating the charges based on the days applicable to the current period. Accounts

receivable is shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles of $125,000.

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Business-type Activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 01, 2021 Increases Decreases June 30, 2022
$ 20,607,035 S - S - $ 20,607,035

2,741,645 1,032,179 (148,537) 3,625,287
23,348,680 1,032,179 (148,537) 24,232,322
65,273,096 65,442 - 65,338,538

100,179,616 3,598,886 - 103,778,502
17,252,924 62,721 - 17,315,645
14,250,551 127,796 (29,943) 14,348,404
196,956,187 3,854,845 (29,943) 200,781,089

40,770,729 2,135,406 - 42,906,135

56,227,745 2,396,600 - 58,624,345

13,837,813 725,665 - 14,563,478

9,109,972 588,513 (20,794) 9,677,691

119,946,259 5,846,184 (20,794) 125,771,649

77,009,928 (1,991,339) (9,149) 75,009,440

$100,358,608 S (959,160) S (157,686) S 99,241,762
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The following is a summary of long-term obligations activity for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balances Additions Reductions Balances One Year
Revenue bonds
Series 2009 $ 2,965,000 S - $ (2,965,000) S - S -
Series 2012A 7,770,000 - (7,770,000) - -
Series 2012B 1,705,000 - (1,705,000) - -
Series 2016 14,615,000 - (14,615,000) - -
Series 2021A - 10,798,000 - 10,798,000 752,000
Series 2021B - 8,101,000 - 8,101,000 2,974,000
27,055,000 18,899,000 (27,055,000) 18,899,000 3,726,000
Premiums 1,494,516 - (1,494,516) - -
Total revenue bonds 28,549,516 18,899,000 (28,549,516) 18,899,000 3,726,000
Compensated absences 198,482 101,695 (66,225) 233,952 88,748
Total S 28,747,998 $ 19,000,695 $(28,615,741) S 19,132,952 S 3,814,748

Revenue Bonds

The Water System has pledged future water customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses, to repay $18.9 million
in revenue bonds. Proceeds from the outstanding bonds provided financing for various construction projects and the
refunding of prior bonds. These bonds are payable solely from the System’s customer net revenues and have maturity dates
through 2027.

Series 2009 Water Revenue Bonds

In August 2009, the County issued $36,340,000 in Series 2009 Water Revenue Bonds. Depending upon the specific year, the
amount maturing ranged from $85,000 to $4,415,000 with the longest maturity being roughly twenty years from the date of
issuance. The bonds carry interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% and are due on October 1, 2029. During 2016, the County
refunded $14,855,000 with the issuance of the Series 2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds. The Series 2009 Bonds were
issued for the purpose of refunding the Series 1998 Revenue Bonds, paying off seven loans from the Georgia Environmental
Facilities Authority (GEFA) and providing additional funding for the Lake McIntosh Reservoir Project.

Series 2012A Water Revenue Bonds

In April 2012, the County issued $8,070,000 in Series 2012A Water Revenue Bonds. Depending upon the specific year, the
amount maturing ranged from $100,000 to $3,660,000 with the longest maturity being less than thirteen and a half years
from the date of issuance. The bonds carry interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% and are due on October 1, 2025. The
Series 2012A Bonds were issued for the purpose of providing funding for the Crosstown Water Treatment Plant Upgrades,
the South Fayette Water Treatment Plant Upgrades and the associated engineering and program management costs.
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Series 2012B Water Revenue Refunding Bonds

In July 2012, the County issued $15,590,000 in Series 2012B Water Revenue Refunding Bonds. Depending upon the specific
year, the amount maturing ranged from $45,000 to $2,015,000 with the longest maturity being less than thirteen and a half
years from the date of issuance. The bonds carry interest rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% and are due on October 1, 2025.
The Series 2012B Bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding the Series 2002 Bonds.

Series 2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds (Direct Placement)

In May 2016, the County issued $16,635,000 in Series 2016 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds. The transaction was awarded
to Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc. (as the placement agent) and DNT Asset Trust (as the purchaser of the bonds). Depending
upon the specific year, the amount maturing ranged from $70,000 to $4,615,000 with the longest maturity being less than
thirteen and a half years (i.e., October 1, 2029) from the date of issuance. Interest rates for the various maturities are 2.08%.
The refunding resulted in an economic gain (difference between present values of the debt service payment on the old and
new debt) of $981,099 and a book loss of $1,111,567 that will be amortized as an adjustment of interest expense over the
remaining 12 years of the refunding bonds. The Series 2016 Bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding a portion of the
Series 2009 Bonds.

Series 2021A Tax-Exempt and Series 2021B Taxable Water Refunding Revenue Bonds (Direct Placement)

In July 2021, the County issued $10,798,000 in tax-exempt refunding revenue bonds with an interest rate of 0.90%. As part
of the 2021 issue, the County issued $8,101,000 in Series 2021B Taxable Revenue Bonds with an interest rate of 0.63%. The
transaction was awarded to Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc. (as the placement agent) and PNC Bank, NA (as the purchaser of
the bonds). The proceeds along with $9,194,521 in cash were used to advance refund $27,055,000 of outstanding 2009
Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2012A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2012B Water Revenue Refunding Bonds and 2016 Water
Refunding Revenue Bonds, which had interest rates ranging from 0.63% to 0.90%. The net proceeds of $27,898,572 (after
payment of $194,300 in underwriting fees and other issuance costs) was deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow
agent to provide funds for the future debt service payment on the refunded bonds. As a result, the 2009 Refunding Revenue
Bonds, 2012A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2012B Water Revenue Refunding Bonds and 2016 Water Refunding Revenue
Bonds are considered defeased and the liability for these bonds has been removed from the statement of net position. The
reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $153,182. This amount is reported as a deferred
outflow of resources and amortized over the remaining life of the refunding debt. The advance refunding reduced its debt
service payments by $1,101,755 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service
payments on the old and new debt) of $927,462.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the revenue bonds as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 S 3,726,000 S 135,466 S 3,861,466
2024 3,751,000 109,818 3,860,818
2025 3,777,000 82,864 3,859,864
2026 3,805,000 51,683 3,856,683
2027 3,840,000 17,280 3,857,280
Total $ 18,899,000 S 397,111 S 19,296,111
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Plan Description

The County, as authorized by the County Commission, has established a defined benefit pension plan, The Fayette County
Defined Benefit Plan (the Plan). Employees are eligible for the plan if they are at least 18 years old and work a minimum of
30 hours per week. Participation in the defined benefit plan begins upon employment. Participants are vested after 5 years.
Employees hired after December 31, 2013 have the choice of participating in the Plan or in the Defined Contribution Plan.
The Plan is administered through the Association County Commissioners of Georgia Third Restated Defined Benefit Plan (the
“ACCG Plan”), an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by GEBCorp and affiliated with the Association of
County Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG). The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries.

Benefits vest after 5 years. Participants may retire at normal retirement, which is the later of 65, or 5 years of vesting service.
Early retirement eligibility is the later of age 55 or 10 years of vesting service. The benefit is 2.00% of average annual
compensation multiplied by years of credited service (not to exceed 30).

Average annual compensation is defined as the highest average of the participant’s compensation over sixty consecutive
months during the ten years preceding the Participant’s date of retirement or other termination if employment
commencement date is prior to January 1, 2014. If the employee commencement date is on or after January 1, 2014, average
annual compensation is defined as the highest average of the participant’s compensation over eighty-four consecutive
months during the ten plan years preceding the participants date of retirement or other termination.

Contributions

The Plan is subject to minimum funding standards of the Georgia Public Retirement Systems Standards law. The Board of
Trustees of the ACCG Plan has adopted a recommended actuarial funding policy for the plan which meets state minimum
requirements and will accumulate sufficient funds to provide the benefits under the plan. The actuarial recommended
contribution rate for 2021 was 6.8% of payroll. This rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The
Water System’s contributions totaled $75,420 for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

At June 30, 2022, the Water System reported a liability of $343,220 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2021. The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2021. An expected total pension liability as of December 31, 2021
was determined using standard roll-forward techniques. The Water System’s proportion of the net pension liability was based
on contributions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. At June 30, 2022, the Employer’s proportion was 3.0844%, which
was a decrease of 6.2895% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.
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For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Water System recognized pension expense of $44,831. At June 30, 2022, the Water
Fund reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources.

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflow

of Resources of Resources

Difference between expected and

actual experience S 111,959 S 11,240
Changes of assumptions 77,695 -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 229,575
Contributions made subsequent to

measurement date 54,880 -
Total S 244,534 S 240,815

The Water System’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $18,642 are reported as deferred outflows of
resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense
as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2023 $ 41,279
2024 (22,914)
2025 (38,516)
2026 (31,010)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the January 1, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.25%
Salary increases 2.50% to 5.50%, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Amount weighted mortality table with a blend of 50% of the General Employees
Table and 50% of the Public Safety Employees with Scale AA to 2021. The tables were projected to 2021 to reflect the
mortality rates in Georgia are in the highest quartile in the nation.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of a February 2019 actuarial
experience study.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined through a blend of using a building-block
method based on 20-year benchmarks (33.33%) and 30-year benchmarks (33.33%), as well as forward-looking capital market
assumptions for a moderate asset allocation (33.34%), as determined by UBS. Expected future rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the

target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset

allocation are summarized in the following table.

Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return
US Fixed Income 30% 3.90%
US Equity Large Core 30% 7.70%
International Core 15% 8.30%
Mid Cap Core 10% 7.80%
Private Real Estate 5% 8.10%
Global Core 5% 8.30%
US Equity Core 5% 7.70%

100%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions will
be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the employee rate. Based
on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability or decreasing

over time relative to total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s Proportional Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of the County, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00 percent, as
well as what the County’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point

lower (6.00%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.000% 7.000% 8.000%
Net Pension Liability S 678,086 S 343,220 S 66,598
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Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far
into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective.
Calculations are based on the substantive plan in effect as of December 31, 2019 and the current sharing pattern of costs
between employer and employee.

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

Plan Description

The County provides funding for certain healthcare-related benefits for retired early-out employees under a single-employer
defined benefit OPEB plan. Future retirees are not eligible for this coverage. The County allows non-early-out employees to
participate in the County's plans for active employees, after their retirement and up until the age at which they are eligible
for Medicare. Such retirees must pay the full cost of the plan, and no spouses or dependents are allowed coverage on such
plan. Age and service requirements apply. The County has the authority to establish and amend the plan provisions. No assets
are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75. Separate financial statements are not
prepared for the OPEB plan

Benefits Provided

Continued healthcare benefits in the form of single coverage will be paid fully by the County from the Major Medical Self-
Insurance Fund for eligible retirees. This benefit is limited to a period which is the shorter of (a) ten years or (b) the length of
time it takes for the employee to reach the age at which they become eligible for Medicare benefits. For those employees
not eligible, the retiree has the option to stay on the County's plans, at the retiree's cost, until the attainment of the age at
which they become eligible for Medicare.

Contributions

The County has elected to fund the plan on a pay-as-you go basis. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the County contributed
$3,764 for the pay as you go benefits for the OPEB plan.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2022, the Water System reported a liability of $34,546 for its proportionate share of the total OPEB liability. The
total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2021. The Water Fund’s proportion of the total OPEB liability was based on contributions during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022. At June 30, 2022, the Water System’s proportion was 7.4904%, which was a decrease of 0.8392%
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Water System recognized OPEB
expense of $3,005.
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At June 30, 2022, the Water System reported deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S 5,716
Changes of assumptions 4,568 8,363
Total S 4,568 S 14,079

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in
OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Amount

2023 S (1,505)
2024 (1,505)
2025 (1,505)
2026 (1,505)
2027 (1,505)

Thereafter (1,986)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Discount rate 3.69%
Inflation 2.50%

Healthcare cost trend rates
Pre-Medicare 7.30%
Medicare 0.00%
3.00%

Salary Increases

Mortality rates were based on the PUB-2010 Combined General Employee and Annuitant Mortality Table projected with scale
MP-2021.

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability is 3.69%. The County's OPEB Plan is an unfunded plan, therefore
the discount rate was set to the rate of tax-exempt, high-quality 20-year municipal bonds, as of the valuation date.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study
from the Georgia Employees’ Retirement System of Georgia for the period of July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2019.
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Sensitivity of the Water System’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Water System’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability, as well as what the Water System’s
total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.69%) or 1
percentage-point higher (4.69%) than the current discount rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.69% 3.69% 4.69%
Total OPEB liability S 38,570 S 34,546 S 31,048

Sensitivity of the Water System’s Proportionate Share of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend
Rates

The healthcare trend for this valuation started at 7.30% and decreased to 3.94% over 53 years. The following presents the
Water System’s proportionate share of the total OPEB liability, as well as what the Water System’s proportionate share of
the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower
(6.30%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.30) than the current healthcare cost trend rates.

Current
Healthcare
1% Decrease Cost Trend 1% Increase
6.30% Rates 8.30%
Total OPEB liability S 30,633 S 34,546 S 39,224

NOTE 10 — DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

In conjunction with the defined benefit plan, the County offers a defined contribution plan administered by Mass Mutual.
The 401(a) pension plan is a defined contribution plan that covers substantially all full time County employees. Under the
current provisions, the County will match contributions made by an employee to the deferred compensation plan on a 1-for-
2 basis up to a maximum contribution by the County of 2.5%. Contributions are calculated and made on a biweekly payroll
basis. During the fiscal year, the Water System contributed $83,189 to the defined contribution plan in matching funds. The
Board of Commissioners establishes matching percentages.
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The “net investment in capital assets” reported in the government-wide financial statement of net position as of June 30,
2022 are as follows:

Total
Cost of capital assets $ 225,013,411
Less accumulated depreciation (125,771,649)
Book value 99,241,762
Deferred charges on bond refunding 153,182
Less retainage payable (62,413)
Less: revenue bonds (18,899,000)
Net investment in capital assets S 80,433,531

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES

The County participates in various federal grant programs, the principal of which are subject to program compliance audits
pursuant to the Single Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the County’s compliance with applicable grant requirements will
be established at a future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the County anticipates such amounts, if any, will be immaterial.

The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the
opinion of the County’s legal counsel, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the County.

NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT

As mentioned in Note 1. A., the System is an Enterprise Fund of Fayette County, Georgia and, accordingly, the information
contained within this section is shown for the County as a whole.

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; and natural disasters for which the County carries commercial insurance. Settled claims have not exceeded
purchased commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years. The County established a limited risk management
program for workers’ compensation during the 1988 fiscal year. The purpose of the Worker’s Compensation Self-Insurance
Internal Service Fund is to pay workers’ compensation claims from accumulated assets of the fund and minimize the total
cost of workers’ compensation insurance to the County. Specific and aggregate excess insurance is provided through a private
insurance carrier. The County initiated its Dental Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund in the 1991 fiscal year. The purpose of
this fund was to pay claims for employees for certain health care expenses incurred up to a maximum of $1,000 per covered
individual. Claims are handled by a third party administrator as of June 1, 2005.The County initiated its Vision reimbursement
plan in the 1997 fiscal year. Employees are reimbursed up to $400 per year per covered individual for out of pocket expenses
associated with vision care. Fayette County established its Major Medical Self-Insurance Internal Service Fund in the 1991
fiscal year, and on June 1, 2002 became fully insured. In June of 2010, the County reinstated its self-insurance program for
this risk.
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The internal service funds are funded by charges to the County’s other funds and component units, and is based primarily
upon the contributing funds’ claims experience. Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but
not reported (IBNRs).Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation, recent claim
settlement trends (including frequency and amount of payouts), and other economic and social factors. The estimate of the
retained risk claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim adjustment expenses related to specific claims and
other claim adjustment expense regardless of whether allocated to specific claims.

Liability, June 30, 2020
Incurred claims and changes in estimate
Claim payments

Liability, June 30, 2021
Incurred claims and changes in estimate
Claim payments

Liability, June 30, 2022

Workers Dental and Major Total

Compensation Vision Medical Claims
S 5,376 S 2,454 S 365,083 S 372,913
483,265 569,422 9,298,372 10,351,059
(406,872) (568,973) (9,001,056) (9,976,901)
81,769 2,903 662,399 747,071
674,717 550,808 8,893,789 10,119,314
(734,845) (550,407) (8,761,228) (10,046,480)
S 21,641 S 3,304 S 794,960 S 819,905
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
Covered payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total pension liability (asset)

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
3.0844% 9.3739% 9.5377% 10.0242% 9.9115% 9.1225% 9.3620% 10.2800%

$ 343220 $ 1,307,376 $ 1,349,399 $ 407,711 $  (304,290) $  (114,720) $  (107,563) $ (773,050
$ 743,794 S 2,221,422 S 2,260,239 S 2,386,011 $ 2,388,955 $ 2,360,491 $ 2,413,996 $ 2,765,138

46.14% 58.85% 59.70% 17.09% -12.74% -4.86% -4.46% -27.96%

86.25% 81.55% 79.56% 91.91% 106.61% 72.34% 76.20% 77.99%

This schedule will present 10 years of information once its accumulated.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - PENSION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially determined contribution $ 51,972 $ 151,411 $ 31,796  $ 30,404 $ 32,211 $ 31,154 § 1,965 $ 17,508
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 75,420 34,636 31,576 32,195 32,254 30,368 38,780 18,856
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (23,448) § 116,775 $ 220 $ (1,791) $ 43) $ 786 $ (36,815) $ (1,348)
Covered payroll $ 738,501 $ 2,221,422 § 2,260,196 $ 2,386,010 $ 2,388,951 $ 2360491 $§ 241399 $ 2,765,138
Contributions as a percentage of covered

payroll 10.21% 1.56% 1.40% 1.35% 1.35% 1.29% 1.61% 0.68%

This schedule will present 10 years of information once its accumulated.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

Proportion of the total OPEB liability
Proportionate share of the total OPEB liability
Covered-employee payroll

Proportionate share of the total OPEB liability
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total OPEB liability

Notes to the Schedule:

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
7.4904% 8.3296% 8.7564% 9.4913% 9.4564%
S 34,546 S 51,954 S 55,486 S 66,646 S 70,513
S 3,055459 S 3,168,595 S 3,233,933 S 3,146,247 S 2,388,955
1.13% 1.64% 1.72% 2.12% 2.95%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

The schedule will present 10 years of information once its accumulated.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - OPEB PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30

Actuarially determined contribution

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of covered
payroll

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
$ - 5 - $ - 8 - 8 -
$ - S - 8 - $ - 8 -
$ 3055459 $§ 3,168,595 § 3,233,933 § 3,146,247 $ 2,388,955
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

This schedule will present 10 years of information once its accumulated.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT
COST OF SALES AND SERVICES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

South Total Costs
Crosstown Fayette Water Water Plant Reservoir of Sales
Water Plant Water Plant Purchases Maintenance Laboratory Distribution Management and Services
Operating Expenses

Salaries S 491,896 S 550,279 S - S 174,381 S 116,614 S 706,772 S - S 2,039,942
Fringe benefits 51,799 93,196 - 26,485 3,267 85,281 - 260,028
Professional services 37,229 31,466 - - 257,320 112,649 44,806 483,470
Repairs and maintenance 255,684 749,450 - - - 229,684 141,523 1,376,341
Rents 440 - - - - 1,756 950 3,146
Insurance - - - - - 2,614 - 2,614
Telecommunications 4,509 6,941 - - - 524 1,353 13,327
Postage - - - - 1,577 - - 1,577
Other services, travel and fees 8,339 5,099 - - 29,282 5,996 - 48,716
Supplies 1,373 500 - - 116,120 19,769 991 138,753
Chemicals 329,437 197,859 - - - - 3,513 530,809
Utilities 724,757 279,938 - - - 10,972 3,330 1,018,997
Gasoline 7,712 1,899 - - - 34,254 - 43,865
Water purchases - - 50,246 - - - - 50,246
Tools and uniforms 4,080 2,929 - - 389 65,487 - 72,885
Equipment purchases - - - - 7,833 16,126 4,291 28,250
S 1,917,255 S 1,919,556 S 50,246 S 200,866 S 532,402 S 1,291,884 S 200,757 S 6,112,966
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY ORGANIZATIONAL UNIT
ADMINISTRATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Total Costs
Customer Utility Water of Sales
Administration Services Billing Marshals and Services
Operating Expenses

Salaries S 546,740 S 319,935 S 163,805 S 220,056 S 1,250,536
Fringe benefits 40,549 23,266 11,409 16,397 91,621
Professional services 420,330 - - 507 420,837
Repairs and maintenance 131,086 - - 7,918 139,004
Leak protection program 136,740 - - - 136,740
Rents 13,691 - - - 13,691
Insurance 105,799 - - 13,648 119,447
Telecommunications 28,200 - - 3,213 31,413
Postage 128,422 - - - 128,422
Other services, travel and fees 83,463 - - 920 84,383
Supplies 57,237 - - 2,637 59,874
Utilities 19,873 - - - 19,873
Gasoline 15,026 - - 16,637 31,663
Instructional materials 742 - - - 742
Tools and uniforms 5,240 - - 1,497 6,737
Equipment purchases 15,451 - - 1,186 16,637
Bad debt - - 14,078 - 14,078
Indirect cost overhead 715,805 - - - 715,805

S 2,464,394 S 343,201 S 189,292 S 284,616 $ 3,281,503

62



FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
RENEWAL AND EXTENSION ACCOUNT
COMMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The various bond resolutions require the creation of an account designated as the “Fayette County Water System Renewal
and Extension Fund” which is to be held separate and apart from its other funds. The purpose of the fund is to serve as a
repository for net revenues generated from the operations of the water utility and not needed for debt service or working
capital.

The resolutions require monthly transfers into this account of any net revenues remaining after the required monthly
transfers to the Debt Service Fund. However, the amount to be transferred is to be reduced by a working capital reserve to
be determined by the chief fiscal officer of the County. The working capital reserve should represent an amount not greater
than one month’s estimated operating and maintenance costs.

Disbursements made from the Renewal and Extension Fund are restricted to payment for:

a. Interest and principal on the bonds in the event that sufficient moneys are not available in the Bond Sinking Fund;
b. An emergency having a major effect on the System;
Making replacements, additions, extensions and improvements to the System and acquiring equipment deemed
reasonable, necessary and in the best interest of the System and bondholders;
d. Charges for investment services; and

Transfer of moneys pursuant to the arbitrage rebate provisions of the Bond Resolution.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
RENEWAL AND EXTENSION ACCOUNT
SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED ASSETS AND RELATED PAYABLES
JUNE 30, 2022

Current assets
Restricted assets
Investments

Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets
Accounts payable
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12,453,068

$
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
RENEWAL AND EXTENSION ACCOUNT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN RESTRICTED ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Beginning balance, July 1, 2021

Increases

Interest earned

Transfers from Water System Revenue Fund
Total increases

Decreases
Water system reimbursement to concentration

Ending balance, July 1, 2022
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9,077,917

26,250
3,348,901

3,375,151

12,453,068




FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
SINKING FUND ACCOUNTS
COMMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The various bond resolutions require the creation of accounts designated as the “Fayette County Water System Sinking Fund”
for the purpose of receiving and disbursing funds for principal and interest on the revenue bonds and for maintaining
designated reserves.

The resolutions require substantially equal monthly transfers into these accounts which are sufficient to pay the principal of
and interest on the revenue bonds as they become due and payable.

In addition, the monthly transfers into this account shall be sufficient to create and maintain a reserve in an amount equal to
the highest debt service due in any future period by June 1, 2022.

Disbursements made from the Sinking Fund are restricted to payment for:

Interest on the bonds;

Principal on the bonds;

Optional redemption of the bonds prior to maturity;

Purchase of bonds in the open market at a price not to exceed the authorized call price for such issue;
Paying agent fees;

Charges for investment services; and

Transfer of excess moneys in the Sinking Fund to the Revenue Fund.

N AR
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
SINKING FUND ACCOUNTS
SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED ASSETS AND RELATED PAYABLES
JUNE 30, 2022

Current assets
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 790,146

Current liabilities payable from
restricted assets
Accrued interest, due October 1 36,447
Current portion of principal 3,726,000

Total current liabilites payable from
restricted assets S 3,762,447
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
SINKING FUND ACCOUNTS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN RESTRICTED ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Beginning balance, July 1, 2021

Increases

Interest earned

Transfers from Water System Revenue Fund
Total increases

Decreases
Revenue bond interest paid
2021 refunding

Total decreases

Ending balance, July 1, 2022
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$

9,195,004

491
895,467

895,958

(105,812)
(9,195,004)

(9,300,816)

$

790,146




STATISTICAL SECTION

The statistical section includes selected financial and general information presented on a multiyear
comparative basis. The statistics are used to provide detail data on the physical, economic social and
political characteristics of the County government. They are intended to provide the financial report
user with a broader and more complete understanding of the government and its financial affairs than
is possible from the basic financial statements.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
INTRODUCTION TO STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

This part of Fayette County Water System's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding this year's financial statements, note disclosures, and supplementary information. This
information is unaudited.

Contents Pages

Financial Trends 71-72
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
Water System's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 73-79
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Water System's most
significant revenue sources. The data gives insight into those factors that could affect the
Water Svstem's ability to collect this revenue source going forward.

Debt Capacity 80-81
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
Water System's current levels of outstanding debt and the Water System's ability to
issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 82-83
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the socioeconomic environment within which the Water System's financial
activities take place and help to make comparisons over time and with other entities.

Operating Information 84 - 89
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the government's financial report relates to the services the
government provides and the activities it performs.

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the relevant year.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
80,433,531 72,629,475 70,494,125 68,527,736 67,376,464
13,243,214 23,105,210 22,548,415 21,021,770 19,173,457
1,263,869 (5,564,518) (4,805,232) (2,870,525) (1,788,429)
94,940,614 90,170,167 88,237,308 86,678,981 84,761,492

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
67,192,871 62,610,973 56,314,710 61,382,854 62,558,616
18,532,120 18,295,821 15,410,942 14,375,769 14,380,299
(234,413) 321,213 8,314,934 3,611,972 2,415,512
85,490,578 81,228,007 80,040,586 79,370,595 79,354,427
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Operating Revenues
Water sales
Penalties
Other service charges and fees
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Water production cost
Personal services
Contractual services
Other operating expenses
Bad debt expense
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses

Total operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income
Intergovernmental
Gain (loss) on disposal of property
Interest expense
Other revenues
Other expense
Total nonoperating revenues(expenses), net

Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers out

Changes in net position

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

14,610,495  $ 14,220,603 15,591,529  $ 14,315,965 $ 14,139,742 15,197,389 14,161,581 $ 13,744,778 $ 13,035194 $ 13,340,217
174,833 164,249 220,011 236,946 246,403 239,415 225,751 231,636 231,014 232,073
1,679,638 1,645,188 1,567,563 1,562,808 1,545,701 1,525,938 1,459,658 1,295,323 409,088 417,599
121,015 19,156 - - - - - - - -
16,585,981 16,049,196 17,379,103 16,115,719 15,931,846 16,962,742 15,846,990 15,271,737 13,675,296 13,989,889
6,112,966 5,609,357 6,867,198 5,793,542 5,540,277 4,645,936 4,556,315 4,531,130 3,428,530 3,341,944
1,342,157 1,755,959 2,101,940 1,483,041 1,403,147 1,873,571 1,853,921 1,528,292 1,873,658 1,613,606
1,073,937 1,040,655 909,495 717,081 906,641 1,358,586 965,090 631,911 774,466 1,644,914
851,331 981,655 990,911 774,295 791,610 758,830 706,424 1,282,812 798,644 225,941
14,078 26,313 21,496 16,848 20,791 21,021 25,963 31,935 28,839 30,294
5,846,184 5,651,765 5,654,577 5,828,305 5,875,550 5,603,404 5,489,061 5,311,187 5,409,847 4,382,984
15,240,653 15,065,704 16,545,617 14,613,112 14,538,016 14,261,348 13,596,774 13,317,267 12,313,984 11,239,683
1,345,328 983,492 833,486 1,502,607 1,393,830 2,701,394 2,250,216 1,954,470 1,361,312 2,750,206
26,678 10,019 226,007 327,590 172,020 59,869 19,052 13,417 10,356 14,911
4,306 34,500 - - (2,000,000) - - - - -
(5,399) (25,415) - 13,975 (10,058) 32,010 (1,425) (13,027) 8,521 19,620
(142,258) (838,937) (1,103,352) (1,289,042) (1,444,834) (1,615,692) (1,878,711) (2,184,478) (2,290,757) (2,578,311)

- - - - - - - 142,538 150,681 -
(3,866) (2,785) (5,109) (4,808) (4,624) (3,950) (145,063) - - (85,663)
(120,539) (822,618) (882,454) (952,285) (3,287,496) (1,527,763) (2,006,147) (2,041,550) (2,121,199) (2,629,443)
1,224,789 160,874 (48,968) 550,322 (1,893,666) 1,173,631 244,069 (87,080) (759,887) 120,763
3,697,188 1,771,985 1,607,295 1,367,167 1,242,681 3,088,940 1,656,881 167,928 776,055 332,659
(151,530) - - - - - - - - -
4,770,447 S 1,932,859 1,558,327 S 1,917,489 $  (650,985) 4,262,571 1,900,950 $ 80,848 S 16,168 _$ 453,422
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Income (Loss) Net Capital

Net before Capital Contributions Change
Fiscal Operating Operating Operating Nonoperating Contributions and in Net
Year Revenues Expenses Income Expenses and Transfers Transfers Position
2022 16,585,981 15,240,653 S 1,345,328 $ 120,539 S 1,224,789 $ 3,545,658 4,770,447
2021 16,049,196 15,065,704 983,492 822,618 160,874 1,771,985 1,932,859
2020 17,379,103 16,545,617 833,486 882,454 (48,968) 1,607,295 1,558,327
2019 16,115,719 14,613,112 1,502,607 952,285 550,322 1,367,167 1,917,489
2018 15,931,846 14,538,016 1,393,830 3,287,496 (1,893,666) 1,242,681 (650,985)
2017 16,962,742 14,261,348 2,701,394 1,527,763 1,173,631 3,088,940 4,262,571
2016 15,846,990 13,596,774 2,250,216 2,006,147 244,069 1,656,881 1,900,950
2015 15,271,737 13,317,267 1,954,470 2,041,550 (87,080) 167,928 80,848
2014 13,675,296 12,313,984 1,361,312 2,121,199 (759,887) 776,055 16,168
2013 13,989,889 11,239,683 2,750,206 2,629,443 120,763 332,659 453,422
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
OPERATING REVENUES BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Operating Revenues

Water revenues

Penalties

Other service charges and fees
Total operating revenues

Operating Revenues

Water revenues

Penalties

Other service charges and fees
Total operating revenues

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
14,610,495 S 14,220,603 15,591,529 14,315,965 14,139,742
174,833 164,249 220,011 236,946 246,403
1,800,653 1,664,344 1,567,563 1,562,808 1,545,701
16,585,981 S 16,049,196 17,379,103 16,115,719 15,931,846

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
15,197,389 $ 14,161,581 13,744,778 13,035,194 13,340,217
239,415 225,751 231,636 231,014 232,073
1,525,938 1,459,658 1,295,323 409,088 417,599
16,962,742 S 15,846,990 15,271,737 13,675,296 13,989,889
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Capital Contributions
Developers
Customers
Governments

Total capital contributions

Capital Contributions
Developers
Customers
Governments

Total capital contributions

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
3,373,183  $ 1,295,635 1,377,618 1,011,093 903,726
324,005 476,350 229,677 356,074 338,955
3,697,188  $ 1,771,985 1,607,295 1,367,167 1,242,681

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2,713,594  $ 1,387,083 - 424,505 76,572
375,346 269,798 167,928 305,136 256,087
- - - 46,414 -
3,088,940 $ 1,656,881 167,928 776,055 332,659
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF MONTHLY MINIMUM CHARGES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
JUNE 30, 2022

Water Monthly
Meter Minimum
Size Charges
3/4" S 18.48 (1)
1" 18.48
11/2" 17.33
2" 23.10
3" 28.88
4" 34.65
6" 40.43
8" 46.20

Monthly service charges for water service generally consist of a monthly demand charge (i.e., a monthly minimum
charge) based on the size of the customer's water meter as shown in the table above. Conceptually from a rate setting
view point of view, this service charge component represents the recovery of those costs incurred by the Water System
to create the necessary plant production and distribution capacity associated with that particular size meter. In
addition to the Monthly Minimum Charge, a volume charge is applied to the actual monthly water consumption for
each customer. Again conceptually, this element of the total bill represents the recovery of those operating costs
incurred to treat and distribute the amount of water that is actually consumed.

Note (1): For the 3/4" meter size, which are predominantly residential customers, the monthly minimum
charger includes the first 2,000 gallons of water usage.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
WATER RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Minimum or Rate per
Rate for First Thousand Conservation
Period Covered 2,000 Gallons Gallons Usage Over 19,999
From To Consumed Over 2,000 Gallon Rate
July 1, 2007 February 28, 2009 S 16.00 S 2.80 S 3.80
March 1, 2009 December 31, 2009 17.60 3.08 4,18
January 1, 2010 June 30, 2022 18.48 3.23 4.39

Effective January 1, 2010:

Conservation Rates apply to Residential and Irrigation Meters - 3/4" and 1" meters, $18.48 for the first 2,000
gallons; $3.23 per thousand gallons for the next 17,999 gallons; $4.39 per thousand for water usage 20,000
gallons and over.

Conservation Rates apply to Residential and Irrigation Larger Size Meters - 1 1/2", 2", 3", and 4" meters have a
base rate depending on the size meter installed; water used is $3.23 per thousand for the first 19,999; then
$4.39 per thousand thereafter.

Water Rates for business and commercial accounts - Minimum bill of $18.48 for the first 2,000 gallons; $3.23

per 1,000 gallons thereafter for 3/4" meter - larger meters have a base rate, plus $3.23 per 1,000 gallons used.

Source: Fayette County Water System
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM

NUMBER OF WATER CUSTOMERS BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

()

Fiscal (1) Commercial / Total Annual Change
Year Residential Industrial Customers Amount Percent
2022 30,317 2,499 32,816 666 2.07%
2021 30,955 1,195 32,150 607 1.92%
2020 30,458 1,085 31,543 501 1.61%
2019 29,931 1,111 31,042 484 1.58%
2018 29,432 1,126 30,558 570 1.90%
2017 28,876 1,112 29,988 403 1.36%
2016 28,479 1,106 29,585 322 1.10%
2015 28,194 1,069 29,263 336 1.16%
2014 27,880 1,047 28,927 191 0.66%
2013 27,725 1,011 28,736 915 3.29%

Note (1):  Includes apartment complexes served by a single connection.

Note (2):  Includes governmental customers

Source: Fayette County Water System
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(1)
()

(4)

FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
TOP TEN WATER CUSTOMERS
CURREN YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Fiscal Year 2022

Fiscal Year 2013

Percentage of

Percentage of

Gallons Water Total Water Water Total Water
Taxpayer Metered Revenues Rank Revenues Revenues Rank Revenues

City of Fayetteville 264,001,328 S 749,161 1 5.13% S 645,769 1 4.84%
Piedmont Healthcare 34,336,436 112,122 2 0.77% 120,886 3 0.91%
Hoshizaki America 21,678,170 70,575 3 0.48% 64,006 4 0.48%
Universal Environmental Services 17,961,766 59,004 4 0.40%

DDRTC Fayette Pavillion Il & IV LLC 17,179,773 58,560 5 0.40%

VR Balmoral Holding, LP 14,945,100 48,827 6 0.33%

Aberdeen Woods Conference Center 13,007,650 42,569 7 0.29%

Saint-Gobain, Mail Stop #2 12,331,300 40,315 8 0.28%

ACG Shiloh LLC 11,990,910 39,216 9 0.27% 46,657 6 0.35%
Summit Properties 11,097,210 36,714 10 0.25% 51,041 5 0.38%
Fayette County Board of Education - - - 136,945 2 1.03%
Fund IV PTC LLC - - - 45,642 7 0.34%
Inland Southern Mgt - - 38,290 9 0.29%
Concord Gwinnett LLC - - 41,881 8 0.31%
THI IIl Pt Lessee LLC - - - 37,802 10 0.28%
Subtotal (Ten Largest Customers) 418,529,643 1,257,063 8.60% 1,228,919 9.21%
Other Customers 13,353,432 91.40% 12,111,298 90.79%
Total Water Revenues 14,610,495 100.00% 13,340,217 100.00%

Source: Fayette County Water System
Note (1): Wholesale customer agreement to provide water.

Note (2): Piedmont Fayette Hospital, formerly Fayette Community Hospital
Note (3): ACG Shiloh, LLC, formerly Bo Trammell (Shiloh Mobile Home Park)
(

Note (4): VR Balmoral Holding, LP formerly Balmoral Group
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM

RATIO OF REVENUE BOND DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Debt as a
Revenue Amount of Percentage
Fiscal Bonds Bond Debt Personal of Personal
Year Outstanding Population (1) per Capita Income (2) Income
2022 S 18,899,000 122,684 S 154.05 8,826,304,000 0.21%
2021 28,549,516 120,684 236.56 8,267,821,000 0.35%
2020 32,999,904 119,400 276.38 7,719,618,000 0.43%
2019 37,465,280 118,000 317.50 7,206,314,000 0.52%
2018 41,670,644 116,200 358.61 6,785,085,000 0.61%
2017 45,840,998 111,627 410.66 6,335,845,000 0.72%
2016 49,671,340 110,714 448.65 6,018,520,000 0.83%
2015 52,147,369 109,664 475.52 5,872,326,000 0.89%
2014 55,817,664 108,365 515.09 5,246,261,000 1.06%
2013 59,432,952 107,524 552.74 5,097,304,000 1.17%
Sources: (1) Atlanta Regional Commission

(2) The Bureau of Economic Analysis
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE FACTOR FOR REVENUE BONDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(2) (3) Revenue
(1) Responsible Net Revenues Bond Debt Service
Fiscal Gross and Necessary Available for Debt Service Coverage
Year Revenues Operating Costs Debt Service Payments Factor
2022 S 16,585,981 S 9,394,469 S 7,191,512 2,999,615 2.40
2021 15,992,767 9,413,939 6,578,828 5,167,441 1.27
2020 17,379,103 10,891,040 6,488,063 5,368,452 1.21
2019 16,115,719 8,784,807 7,330,912 5,290,975 1.39
2018 15,931,846 8,662,466 7,269,380 5,416,994 1.34
2017 16,962,742 8,657,944 8,304,798 5,194,642 1.60
2016 15,846,990 8,107,713 7,739,277 5,499,625 1.41
2015 15,271,737 8,006,080 7,265,657 5,583,888 1.30
2014 13,675,296 6,904,137 6,771,159 5,622,275 1.20
2013 13,989,889 6,856,699 7,133,190 5,833,311 1.22
Note (1): "Gross Revenues" amount represents Operating Revenues for the Water System which excludes interest
income on construction accounts and tap fees.
Note (2): "Reasonable and Necessary Operating Costs" represents the operating expenses of the Water System
less the non-cash items of depreciation and amortization expense.
Note (3): Represents income before depreciation, and nonoperating revenues and expenses
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year Median Per Capita Personal School Unemployment
Ended Population (1) Age (2) Income Income (3) Enrollment (4) Rate (5)
2022 122,684 43 S 71,943 S 8,826,304,000 S 20,048 2.6%
2021 120,684 43 68,508 8,267,821,000 19,912 4.7%
2020 119,400 42 64,653 7,719,618,000 20,590 3.5%
2019 118,000 42 61,070 7,206,314,000 20,520 3.5%
2018 116,200 43 58,391 6,785,085,000 20,104 4.9%
2017 111,627 43 56,759 6,335,845,000 20,238 4.7%
2016 110,714 43 54,361 6,018,520,000 20,242 6.0%
2015 109,664 43 53,548 5,872,326,000 20,243 7.1%
2014 108,365 42 48,413 5,246,261,000 20,301 7.0%
2013 107,524 43 47,406 5,097,304,000 20,506 7.3%
Sources: (1) Atlanta Regional Commission
(2) The Bureau of Economic Analysis
(3) Fayette County Board of Education
)

(4

Federal Reserve Bank
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

Fiscal Year 2022

Fiscal Year 2013

Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
County County
Taxpayer Employees Rank Employment (1) Employees Rank Employment

Piedmont Fayette Hospital 2,000 1 3.44% 1,400 1 2.87%
Panasonic Automotive Systems Co. 800 2 1.38% 300 5 0.62%
Cooper Lighting Solutions 650 3 1.12% 600 3 1.23%
Hoshizaki America, Inc. 500 4 0.86% 330 4 0.68%
Walmart Supercenter 427 5 0.73%
Walmart 400 6 0.69%
Avery Dennison Corp 250 7 0.43%
Cornerstone Building Brands, Inc. 250 8 0.43%
Fayetteville Center for Nursing 210 9 0.36%
Gerresheimer Peachtree City LP 200 10 0.34%
NCR Corporation 1,200 2 2.46%
World Airways 255 6 0.52%
FAA Tracon 190 7 0.39%
TDK Components 130 8 0.27%
Cooper Wiring Device Headquarters 130 9 0.27%
SANY America 126 10 0.26%

5,687 9.78% 4,661 9.57%

Source: Fayette County Development Authority
(1) Calculated using Total Labor Force
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
DAILY WATER DEMAND AND PLANT PRODUCTION CAPACITY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Water Plant
Water Demand (MGD) Rated
Fiscal Average Maximum Production Available
Year Daily Daily Capacity Capacity
2022 9.7 17.8 22.8 5.0
2021 9.5 18.3 22.8 4.5
2020 9.9 17.6 22.8 5.2
2019 9.3 18.0 22.8 4.8
2018 9.5 15.0 22.8 7.8
2017 10.3 17.1 22.8 5.7
2016 9.3 19.0 22.8 3.8
2015 8.8 14.2 22.8 8.6
2014 8.3 13.6 22.8 9.2
2013 8.4 16.8 22.8 6.0
Note 1: Water demand represents water produced by the Water System.
Note 2: Information is presented in million gallons per day (MGD) units.
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT WATER SYSTEM EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

Function 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Water System Operations

Water plant operations 26 26 26 25 24 24 25 25 28 28
Distribution 19 11 11 11 8 7 10 8 8 8
Utility services - 9 9 9 9 9 - - - -
Total Water System Operations 45 46 46 45 41 40 35 33 36 36

Administration

Director, Customer Service, Billing 23 22 21 21 18 19 24 23 21 22
Meter readers - - - - - - 3 3 3 3
Marshals 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 1 -
Total administration 27 26 25 25 22 23 31 30 25 25
Total Water System Employees 72 72 71 70 63 63 66 63 61 61

Source: Fayette County Finance Department
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM

OPERATING EXPENSES BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Operating Expenses
Water production cost
Personal services
Contractual services
Other operating expenses
Bad debt expense
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses

Operating Expenses
Water production cost
Personal services
Contractual services
Other operating expenses
Bad debt expense
Depreciation expense

Total operating expenses

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
6,112,966 5,609,357 6,867,198 5,793,542 5,540,277
1,342,157 1,755,959 2,101,940 1,483,041 1,403,147
1,073,937 1,040,655 909,495 717,081 906,641
851,331 981,655 990,911 774,295 791,610
14,078 26,313 21,496 16,848 20,791
5,846,184 5,651,765 5,654,577 5,828,305 5,875,550
15,240,653 15,065,704 16,545,617 14,613,112 14,538,016

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
4,645,936 4,556,315 4,531,130 3,428,530 3,341,944
1,873,571 1,853,921 1,528,292 1,873,658 1,613,606
1,358,586 965,090 631,911 774,466 1,644,914
758,830 706,424 1,282,812 798,644 225,941
21,021 25,963 31,935 28,839 30,294
5,603,404 5,489,061 5,311,187 5,409,847 4,382,984
14,261,348 13,596,774 13,317,267 12,313,984 11,239,683
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGES

JUNE 30, 2022
Amount
Property Coverages in Force
Property (1) S 181,180,163
Other equipment 15,109,658
Flood and earthquake 5,000,000
Note (1): Includes real and personal property, and boiler and machinery coverage.
Liability Limits
Each
Liability Coverages Occurrence Aggregate
General liability S 2,000,000 S 3,000,000
Automotive liability 1,000,000 None
Law enforcement liability 2,000,000 2,000,000
Public officials' liability 2,000,000 2,000,000

Other Coverages
The County requires payment and performance surety bonds and builders' risk insurance of all

contractors and subcontractors involved in construction activities. Surety bonds have to be issued by
surety firms listed on the U.S. Treasury approved list and builders' risk insurance has to be in the
amount of the contract sum.

Self-Insurance Risks
The County is partially self-insured for certain risks such as medical and workers' compensation claims.
Additional information on the management of these risks is contained in the notes to the financial
statements.

Source: Certificate of Liability Insurance, APEX Insurance Agency, LLC
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
FUNDING SOURCES OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Funding Sources

Total Costs Debt Proceeds

Fiscal of Capital System and Interest
Year Improvements Revenues Income

2022 S 1,032,182 S 1,032,182 S -
2021 1,920,197 1,759,644 160,553
2020 1,791,214 1,476,718 314,496
2019 1,298,698 1,281,968 16,730
2018 812,120 759,026 53,094
2017 3,774,713 2,467,116 1,307,597
2016 7,095,867 1,793,514 5,302,353
2015 3,165,069 2,145,236 1,019,833
2014 2,085,510 1,477,142 608,368
2013 3,974,588 894,835 3,079,753
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FAYETTE COUNTY WATER SYSTEM
OPERATING AND CAPITAL INDICATORS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

For the Fiscal Year Ended

Indicator 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Water Storage Capacity
(Millions of Gallons) 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25 16.25

Water Production Plants 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Water Distribution System
(Miles of Pipe) 660 652 650 646 642 638 629 623 620 619

Water Customers 32,816 32,150 31,543 31,042 30,558 29,988 29,585 29,263 28,927 28,736

Average Water Production
(Millions Gallons per Day) 9.7 9.5 9.9 9.3 9.5 10.3 9.3 8.8 8.3 8.4

Maximum Water Production
(Millions Gallons per Day) 17.8 18.3 17.6 18.0 15.0 17.1 19.0 14.2 13.6 16.8

Permitted Water Production

(Millions Gallons per Day)
Crosstown Plant 135 135 135 135 135 135 13.5 135 135 135
South Fayette Plant 9.3 9.3 9.3 9.3 9.3 9.3 9.3 9.3 9.3 16.8

Source: Fayette County Water System
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FAYETTE

Water

COMPLIANCE SECTION

The Compliance Section includes the Independent Auditor’s Reports on Internal Control

90



NICHOLS, CAULEY & ASSOCIATES, LLC
1300 Bellevue Avenue
Dublin, Georgia 31021
478-275-1163 FAX 478-275-1178
dublin@nicholscauley.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Fayette County Board of Commissioners
Fayette County, Georgia
Fayetteville, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the Fayette County Water System (the “Water System”) as of and for the year ended June
30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Water System’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 24, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Water System’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Water
System’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees in
the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Water System’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Atlanta | Calhoun | Canton | Dalton | Dublin
Fayetteville | Kennesaw | Rome | Warner Robins
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Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report

is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

V%W,w, @qﬁg/ v Qomecamd, LLL

Dublin, Georgia
February 24, 2023
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